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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
hereby present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year"”).

FINAL RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Group’s audited consolidated net loss attributable
to shareholders was approximately HK$70.6 million for
the Year which was mainly attributable to the loss from
the sale of listed equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, while the changes in fair value of equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss were
the principal factors to the corresponding loss amount
of approximately HK$123.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Loss per share for the Year was
approximately HK$0.38 (2018 HK$0.66 (Restated)).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2018. Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment company and the
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 27 October 1999, pursuant to Chapter
21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the Year, the
Group remains principally engaged in listed investments in
Hong Kong and in unlisted companies.

Given continuous volatile market conditions, the listed
investments of the Group during the Year has suffered.
The listed equity investments has posted net realised
loss of approximately HK$101.6 million (20718 HK$15.4
million) and unrealised gain of approximately HK$74.6
million (2018: loss of HK$40.9 million). During the Year,
the Board remained focus on listed equity in Hong Kong.
The Company is cautious in identifying any investment
opportunities to achieve medium-term or long-term capital
appreciation.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

In order to keep reasonable spread of the Group’s
investments, the Board will maintain a diversified
investment portfolio to cover a wide range of business
sectors, including, but not limited to, companies engaged
in sectors such as finance, consumer goods and services,
media, construction, mining, etc.

All the investments of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are equity investments as follows:

RTAEBEMOIBARENKRE EFE8
HIFZTTEREES  UWREEEZITE
Hbei (BARMEESHE HEE
R R R BEMRBEENAR -

AEERZZE—NF+A=1+—BZFF
EREBEHBUTRAKE:

Approximate
percentage of
the Group’s

Market consolidated net
value asset value
HAEEBEEEE
miE FEBANBE S
HK$'000
BET T
Listed investments FmiE 98,220 37.1%
Unlisted investments EEMEE 148,319 56.0%
246,539

In connection with unlisted investments, the Group
principally held three unlisted equity investment projects
with attractive potentials. These three investee companies
are Keen Champ Investments Limited ("Keen Champ”),
Peak Zone Group Limited (“Peak Zone"”) and Pure Power
Holdings Limited (“Pure Power").

The principal business of Keen Champ Group is holding
operating rights and forestry management of forest trees.
Peak Zone Group principally engages in the electronic
commerce industry specializing on the provision of
integrated application, which can be deployed by its
customers on a modular or selective basis, offering
flexibility in budget and choice. Pure Power Group is
running natural resources exploration and exploitation
business in America.

MELTREMS AEEFEHEF=1
BAERSIEBENNFELETRAIREIEE %
SRFERERTREBRERRAT ([2
&) ~Peak Zone Group Limited ([Peak
Zone ] ) &2 Pure Power Holdings Limited
([Pure Power | ) °
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

Based on the valuation reports, the valuation of the
Group’s stake in Peak Zone, Keen Champ and Pure Power
as at 31 December 2019 were approximately HK$33.7
million, HK$73.3 million and HK$41.3 million. Accordingly,
there were decreases in the value of investment in Peak
Zone and Pure Power of approximately HK$9.0 million and
HK$31.2 million and increase in value of the investment in
Keen Champ of approximately HK$7.3 million during the
year.

The Group neither acquired nor disposed of any unlisted
investments during the Year.

Set out below are further details on the above unlisted
investments as at 31 December 2019:

Keen Champ

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
unaudited consolidated net loss attributable to equity
holders of Keen Champ was approximately HK$1.3 million.
The loss was due to operation with sizeable scale is yet to
commence. Taking global growth in lumber consumption
in these few years into account, the Company believes
Keen Champ will bring a positive return to the Group
when its scale operation commences.

Peak Zone

For the financial year ended 31 December, 2019, the
unaudited consolidated net profit attributable to equity
holders of Peak Zone was approximately HK$5.0 million.
Peak Zone group is beginning to develop its business
in Eastern China area and continuing the development
of related and advanced systems to provide more
comprehensive services to increase its revenue. The
Company expects that the Peak Zone group is still with a
high business growth potential.

Pure Power

For the financial year ended 31 December, 2019, the
unaudited consolidated net loss attributable to equity
holders of Pure Power was approximately US$493,000.
The loss was due to operation with sizeable scale is yet
to commence. In view of the significance of petroleum
with limited supply, the Company expects that Pure Power
group will bring a positive return to the Group in long run
after commencement of the petroleum exploration of Pure
Power.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

In addition to three unlisted investments above, the Group
held two significant listed equity investments, which are
WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS") (HKSE stock code: 8021)
and Asia Grocery Distribution Limited (“Asia Grocery”)
(HKSE stock code: 8413) as at 31 December 2019.

WLS is principally engaged in the scaffolding and fitting
out services, management contracting services and other
services for construction and buildings work, money
lending business, securities brokerage and margin
financing and securities investment business. For the
year ended 30 April 2019, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of WLS was HK$51,898,000. As
WLS is one of the leading scaffolding sub-contractors in
the industry, the management of WLS are confident about
securing more contracts which based on the HKSAR’s land
supply and residential units forecast in the coming years.
The Company believes the WLS's business strategy is in
line with the overall direction of the government'’s strategic
development plans for property construction, infrastructure
investment and financial market development, and profit
will be generated in medium terms.

Asia Grocery is principally engaged in the provision of
food and beverage grocery distribution. For the year
ended 31 March 2019, the audited consolidated profit
attributable to owners of Asia Grocery was HK$3,909,000.
Asia Grocery consistently adhered to the principle of
maintaining profitability while striving for better results,
and continued to step up its efforts in controlling
expenditure, and at the same time enhancing its presence
in the food and beverage grocery distribution market by
devoting more resources to sales and marketing activities
and actively facilitating the business development of new
products. The Company believes that the Asia Grocery’s
expanding in business scale in the past three years and its
efforts in controlling expenditure will improve the return to
its shareholders continuously in the coming years.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resource, Capital Structure and
Gearing Ratio

The Group's asset portfolio was mainly financed by
internally generated cash resources and fund raising
activities. As at 31 December 2019, net current assets of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$116.8 million
(2018: HK$154.0 million) with cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$0.3 million (2018: HK$0.5 million). The
consolidated net asset value per share of the Company as
at 31 December 2019 was HK$0.14 (2018: HK$0.18). The
consolidated net asset value per share as at 31 December
2019 is calculated based on the net assets of the Group of
approximately HK$265.1 million (2018: HK$335.3 million)
and 1,862,316,806 ordinary shares of the Company at
par value of HK$0.10 each in issue as at that date (2018:
1,862,316,806 shares).

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had no
outstanding bank borrowing (2018: Nil). The gearing
ratio of the Group was 0.5% as at 31 December 2019
(2018: 7.9%), which is calculated based on the Group's
total liabilities divided by its total assets. Taking into
account of the amount of liquid assets in hand and
available short-term or margin loan facilities, the Group
has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing
operational requirements.

Charge of Assets and Margin Facilities

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, margin facilities
from several regulated securities brokers were granted
to the Group which were secured by the Group’s listed
investments. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group had not utilised against these facilities.

Material Acquisitions and Disposal of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the Year, the Company does not have any
significant acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 7 employees
(2018: 7), including directors of the Company. They
are remunerated based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market standards. Employee
benefits include medical insurance coverage, a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and share option scheme. There has
been no significant change in the Group’s remuneration

policy.

Comprehensive disclosure of directors’ emoluments
pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is set out in note 9(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group’'s exposures to foreign currencies mainly
arises from its investments in companies located in the
PRC, which are financed internally. In order to mitigate
the potential impact of currency fluctuations, the Group
closely monitors its foreign currency exposures and will use
suitable hedging instruments against significant foreign
currency exposures, where necessary. No foreign currency
hedge contract was entered into by the Group during
the Year. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no
outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts (2018: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital

Assets and Their Expected of Funding in Coming Year
As at 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
Annual Report approved, the Company does not have any
concrete plan for material investments or capital assets.

PROSPECTS

The first quarter of Year 2020 is the most challenging
period since bankruptcy of the Lehman Brothers in Year
2008. The outbreak of COVID-19 has killed over 20,000
people and infected more than 460,000 people globally.
Business activities were suspended in a large extent over
the world. The investment sentiment has dropped to the
bottom since the last decade.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

In the U.S., Dow Jones Industrial Average Index
experienced cliff diving from over 29,500 points in mid
February 2020 to below 19,000 points in March 2020. On
3 Mach 2020, the central bank cut interest rates by half
a percentage point, its biggest single cut in more than a
decade, as a pre-emptive move to protect the economy
from the coronavirus. On 15 March 2020, the Federal
Reserve further slashed its benchmark interest rate by 1%
to a range of 0% to 0.25% and pledged to buy US$700
billion worth of government debt and mortgage-backed
securities. Subsequently, the Federal Reserve announced
a series of huge measures on 25 March 2020 in response
to the continuing fallout tied to the coronavirus
pandemic. This includes unlimited asset purchases and its
first-ever entry into corporate bonds via the purchase of
investment-grade securities, including exchange-traded
funds. This is commonly named as “QE Infinity” in the
market. The Federal Reserve, in its own words, launched
its aggressive effort to offset the extraordinary economical
turmoil caused by the coronavirus outbreak by rolling out
its biggest weapon.

In Europe, the situation is far more complicated than that
in U.S. In early 2020, Europe has been bothered with
Brexit. After the wide spreading of COVID-19 in Europe,
especially in Italy, in March 2020, the economy of Europe
is hit much harder.

The number of death cases in Italy is the highest in the
world so far. Italy has been in national lockdown since
early March 2020 and it is scheduled to last until early
April this year. Even so, metalworkers and bank unions
vowed to strike. They were demanding more stringent
measures for the factories that were still open and for
bank employees, who claimed that they did not have
enough masks, gloves or disinfectant.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

In UK, the Prime Minister Boris Johnson has just in late
March this year ordered that people could leave their
homes only for the most limited purposes, including
shopping for essentials, medical needs, to provide care for
a vulnerable person, for work or strictly limited exercise.
And he said that gathering in groups of more than two
was prohibited.

The newly announced restrictions follow days of
controversy over whether the UK was moving too slowly
to force Britons to stay at home except in exceptional
circumstances, as compared the moves implemented by
several other major nations.

Both Euro and Sterling Pounds largely depreciated against
US dollars in March 2020. Euro has been marked as low as
USD 1.075, challenging the lowest point of USD 1.039 in
the last ten years. Sterling Pounds have once reached USD
1.143, the lowest rate in the last decade.

China is the county where COVID-19 firstly appeared. It is
also the first country adopting stringent lockdown policy in
its largely infected area, i.e. Wuhan and quarantine policy
in its major cities. After a couple of months of coronavirus
quarantine, China is slowly emerging from its shutdowns
by restarting production at factories and resuming some
flights. A recovery in the world’s second-largest economy
provides some relief for global manufacturers in the
months ahead as the outbreak continues to wreak havoc
in Europe and U.S.

President Xi Jinping expressed that China would
meet its economic and social developments goals this
year, including eradicating poverty and building up a
“moderately well-off society”, despite the virus outbreak
sending the economy into free fall in the first two months
of the year and increasing evidence of a global recession.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

In view of the above analysis, the Board considered that
the economy recovery of China (including Hong Kong) will
be at a faster pace than those in U.S. and Europe. The
Board will continue to place its investment in China and
Hong Kong principally, and monitor the market dynamics,
and adopt a conservative approach on investments, so as
to enhance value to our Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express our appreciation to the staff and
management team of the Group for their contribution
during the Year and also to give our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their continuous support.

By order of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited

B-REZRERAA

SHUM Kit Lan Anita
Executive Director

Hong Kong
27 March 2020
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Biographical Details of Directors
ESEARBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shum Kit Lan Anita, aged 58, is a director and a
responsible officer of Chariot Capital Management Limited.
She is currently a licensed person to carry out type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. Ms. Shum has a wealth of working
experience in securities advisory, corporate finance,
corporate management and fund management. Ms. Shum
was appointed as an executive director (”Director”) of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited in November 2014.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. HU Xiaoting, aged 40, holds a Master degree
in Finance from Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics. She has over 10 years’ solid experience in
finance industry in the PRC. Ms. HU was appointed as a
non-executive Director in June 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors
ESEARBRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Cho Sing, aged 79, has over 30 years of
experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. Mr. HUNG
has been the chairman of Hong Kong, Kowloon and New
Territories Motion Picture Industry Association Limited since
1991 and was the chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards
Association Limited from 1993 to 1995. Mr. Hung was
appointed by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") Government as a member of the Hong Kong
Film Development Council from 2007 to 31 March 2013.
Mr. Hung was also appointed as a consultant of the China
Film Association since 2013. Mr. Hung is also a member
of HKSAR Election Committee and a vice chairman of the
Cultural Profession Committee of the Guangdong, Hong
Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion Council (E®R%&
BERAFREGVEERXRZE®AEEZE) . Mr. Hung
was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the HKSAR
Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution to
the Hong Kong Film industry. Mr. Hung has been appointed
by the HKSAR Government as a non-official member of the
Working Group on Manufacturing Industries, Innovative
Technology, and Cultural and Creative Industries under
the Economic Development Commission since 17 January
2013. He has been the vice chairman of Film Association
of Guangdong, China since November 2016. Mr. Hung
was appointed as independent non-executive Director
in October 2014. Mr. Hung is currently an executive
director of EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited (stock code:
8101). He is also an independent non-executive director
of Oshidori International Holdings Limited (stock code:
622), KOALA Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8226),
Miko International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1247)
and China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326).
Mr. Hung was an independent non-executive director of
Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited (stock code: 279) up
to January 2017 and a non-executive director of Universe
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1046) up to
July 2019. All these companies are listed on either the
Main Board or the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors
ESEARBRE

Mr. Chan Yik Pun, aged 38, holds a Bachelor Degree
of Business (Major in Accounting) awarded by Monash
University in 2004. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan
has over 10 years of experience in accounting and
auditing field. Mr. Chan was appointed as independent
non-executive Director in October 2014. He resigned as
an independent non-executive director of Chaoda Modern
Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 682) with effect
from 1 March 2020.

Ms. Chung Fai Chun, aged 54,
general manager of a watchcase factory. She has over

is currently a deputy

18 years’ ample experience in the watchcase production
industry, and has a wealth of experience in marketing,
business operation and management. Ms. Chung was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in

December 2014.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

The directors (the “Directors”) of Unity Investments
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) herein present
their report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are investment
holding. During the Year, the Group was principally
engaged in listed investments in Hong Kong, main stock
markets around the world, and also in unlisted companies.

The segment information of the Group for the Year is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
65, 148 and 66 to 67, respectively.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
Year (2018: Nil) and the Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (2018 Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Fair review of the Company’s business and likely
future development

Please refer to “Executive Director’s Statement & Management
Discussion & Analysis” on pages 4 to 12.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Environmental Protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to
achieve efficient utilisation of resources through launching
paper recycling and setting auto power saving mode on
the Company’s computers in offices.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group's principal activities are investments in listed
or unlisted financial instruments in Hong Kong and
elsewhere. The Company has to invest in accordance
with the restrictions stated in its articles of association.
Meanwhile, the Company is a company listed in Hong
Kong. The Group also has to comply with the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up
to the date of this report and to the best of the Directors’
knowledge and belief, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and other
jurisdictions as far as its investments are concerned.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities to
advance their career. The Group's policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations,
seminars and training courses related to their roles and
duties through leave grants. Competitive remuneration
is also offered to employees and their performance is
reviewed on an annual basis reflecting each employee’s
contributions to the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements, is set out on page
148. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the Year in share capital
of the Company are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Director:
Ms. SHUM Kit Lan Anita

Non-executive Director:
Ms. HU Xiaoting

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing

Mr. CHAN Yik Pun

Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun

In accordance with Article 157 of the articles of association
of the Company, Ms. HU Xiaoting and Mr. CHAN Yik Pun
shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 24 to 45.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST-PAID EMPLOYEES

Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest-paid employees of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 9(a) and 9(b) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to
have any Discloseable Interests or Short Position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
contained in the Listing Rules (collectively “Discloseable
Interests or Short Positions”).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate, neither the Directors nor any
of their spouses or children under age of eighteen, had
any right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party to and in which
Directors had a material interest in, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and
their respective associates had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause a significant competition
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interests which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and
subject to the provisions of the statutes, every Director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall
be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune which may
happen to or be incurred by the Company in the execution
of the duties of his office or in relation thereto, provided
that the Company's articles of association shall only have
effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The Company has
maintained Directors and officers liability insurance during
the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company
as detailed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.
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Directors’ Report
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any
individual, firm or corporate entity to manage or regulate
the whole of any substantial part of the Company’'s
business.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of existing share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 30 April 2013 are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance to all staff. Under the MPF
Scheme, employer and employees are each required to
make mandatory contributions to the MPF Scheme and
contributions to the MPF Scheme vested immediately.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SHARE

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B OF THE LISTING RULES

Mr. CHAN Yik Pun resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Chaoda Modern Agriculture
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 682), which is a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect from 1 March
2020.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2019, there was no person who had
any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material transactions with
its related parties during the Year.

The Directors conducted review of the related party
transactions of the Group during the Year and were not
aware any transaction requiring disclosure of connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
articles of association of the Company although there are
no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float in compliance with
Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) as at the date of this report comprises all
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. CHAN Yik
Pun, Mr. HUNG Cho Sing and Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun. Mr.
CHAN Yik Pun is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee, along with management, has
reviewed the consolidated results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019, including accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and also discussed
matters such as internal controls, risk management, audit
and financial reporting, including a review of the audited
consolidated financial statements, for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited
E-REEZERBRAT

SHUM Kit Lan Anita
Executive Director

Hong Kong
27 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is dedicated to an ongoing
enhancement of effective and efficient corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that high
corporate governance standards are essential in providing
framework for the Company to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has applied the principles set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

For the Year, the Company has complied with all code
provisions set out in the CG Code, except for code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1, details of which will be
explained below.

Based on Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. The
Company has no Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
since the resignation of Mr. NG Chi Hoi on 1 August
2016. The Board's current significant decisions are made
in Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights
and responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss
significant issues he/she concerns, and has the power to
make the decisions among other Board members.

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to
re-election. Ms. HU Xiaoting, the non-executive Director,
has no specific term of appointment but she is subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to serve the
purpose of this code provision.
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The practice of the corporate governance of the Company
will be reviewed and updated from time to time in order
to comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the directors of the Company. Upon specific enquiry by
the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code for the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
an executive Director, namely Ms. SHUM Kit Lan Anita; a
non-executive Director, namely Ms. HU Xiaoting; and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”), namely
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, Mr. CHAN Yik Pun and Ms. CHUNG
Fai Chun. None of the Directors are, in any respect, related
to each other in any circumstances. Mr. CHAN Yik Pun
has appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise. The Board membership is covered by recognised
professional accounting and experienced personnel so as
to bring in valuable contribution and professional advice
for the development of the Company. None of Directors
has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation. Biographical details of each of
Director are set out on pages 13 to 15.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Board, at all times, has met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs
representing at least one-third of the Board and at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Board has received written annual confirmation from
each of the INEDs in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers all INEDs are independent under the definition of
the Listing Rules.

All INEDs were appointed for a fixed terms of three years
from the date of appointment, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company.

Responsibility, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board

The Board’s responsibilities is not limited to formulating
corporate strategies and setting up of business
development plans, but to also monitor and supervise the
performance of management and review the effectiveness
of internal controls including the scope of financial,
operational, compliance, risk management, as well as
preparing and approving financial statements of the
Group. Directors, collectively and individually, are aware
of their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner
in which Company business and affairs are managed and
operated. All Directors, including INEDs, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the service and
advice from the company secretary and management
of the Company. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

All Directors have grave concern, sufficient time and
attention to all significant issues and affairs of the Group.
Day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the executive board members.
Executive Board meetings are convened when necessary
to deal with day-to-day matters that require the Board's
prompt decision, and therefore it is usually that only
executive Directors would attend. Each executive Director
has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience
to hold his/her position in order to ensure that his/her
fiduciary duties can be carried out in an effective and
efficient manner. The Board has established three board
committees,
Committee and Nomination Committee (collectively
the
Company's affairs.

namely Audit Committee, Remuneration

“Board Committees”) for overseeing particular

The composition and functions of each committee are
described below. These committees have specific functions
and authority to examine issues and report to the Board
with their recommendations (if appropriate) for the
decision of the Board.
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Meeting Records SRR

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and RAFEAN SEEHFEEEEH £ 8
General Meetings attended by each Director during the  E&ZNMBEARE ZNEEN TE - FEHRA
Year is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets ZHFHEAFEANAEBALTETEETER
indicates maximum number of meetings in the Year in BXZEBgKE (REBMIBERME)HEFT
which the individual was a Board Member or Committee  BITZHZEHAH -

Member (as the case may be).

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTEERE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meetings

Name of Director EEHA EEg EiZREe §MHZEe R¥ZEe VN
Executive Director HIES
Ms. SHUM Kit Lan Anita TEERT 12/(12) N/A N/A N/A 22)

TEA TER TEA
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. HU Xiaoting BEERt 12/(12) N/A N/A N/A 0/(2)

TR TER TEm

Independent non-executive Directors BUEHTEES

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing HEELAE 121(12) 22) 2Q) (1) 1)
Mr. CHAN Yik Pun R %4 12/12) 22) 22) 1) 22)
Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun RV U+ 1112) 12) 12) 0/(1) 1)
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All Directors, including the INEDs, should keep abreast
of their responsibilities as Directors and the Company's
business and activities. The company secretary continuously
update all Directors on the latest developments regarding
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors. All
Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training
courses and seminars that may require keeping abreast
with the latest changes in laws, regulations and the
business environment.

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the Year, all Directors
have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities either by attending training courses
or by reading materials relevant to the Company’s business
or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. The
Company has received from each Director a confirmation
of their participation in continuous professional
development by attending training course or reading
relevant materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors and measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, skills, knowledge and professional experience.
All Board appointments will be based on merit, and
candidates will be measured against objective criteria, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee has the delegated responsibilities
to monitor the implementation and review the Board
Diversity Policy and report to the Board.
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s
Nomination Policy and will take into account this
Policy. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board, having due regard to the benefits of diversity
on the Board and also the needs of the Board without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The Board would ensure that appropriate balance of
gender diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’
expectation and international and local practices. The
Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
directors who have direct experience in the Group’s core
markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting
the Group's strategy.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five
directors. Three of them are women. Two of the female
directors is non-executive Directors (including INED),
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Based on provision Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing.
The Board’s current significant decisions are made in
Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights
and responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss
significant issues he/she concerns, and has the power to
make the decisions among other Board members.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees: the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, with specific responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established
in January 2003. As at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprises all INEDs, namely
Mr. CHAN Yik Pun, Mr. HUNG Cho Sing and Ms. CHUNG
Fai Chun. Mr. CHAN Yik Pun is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to the following:

o to consider and review the appointment, resignation
and removal of external auditor and their fees and
supervision on whether any non-auditing services
has been provided by external auditor and giving of
advice to the Board on employment of auditor

o to liaise with the Board and discuss with the external
auditor about issues of significance during the audit
of the Group

o to review the interim and annual results of the
Group
o to review the report from the external auditor in

relation to continuing connected transactions

o to discuss and monitor with management on the
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, and risk management and internal control
systems

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is adopted
on 16 March 2012 and updated on 31 December 2015,
which is consistent with the CG Code and is published
on the website of the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice if considers necessary.
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Code provision C3.3 of the CG Code stipulates that
members of the Audit Committee should meet at least
twice a year with the Company’s auditor regarding review
of the Group's financial information including the financial
statements and annual report and half-year report.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were
two meetings, included in which two meetings were held
between the Audit Committee and the Company’s auditor
to review and discuss the Company’s annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and the interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2019. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the related results announcements and
reports of the Group and has submitted the same to the
Board for approval. Members of the Audit Committee
were of the opinion that the preparation of such two sets
of financial statements and related results announcements
were in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements in
relation to financial reporting. Number of attendance of
the Audit Committee meetings are disclosed under the
section headed “Meeting Records” above.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was
established in September 2005 with specific written
terms of reference, which was updated and adopted
on 16 March 2012 to comply with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
to determine the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee also has the responsibility to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. The specific terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is available on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises all INEDs, namely Mr. HUNG Cho
Sing, Mr. CHAN Yik Pun and Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun.
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. Two meetings
were held during the Year to review the remuneration
package of existing Directors. No Director, or any of
his/her associates, and executive is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration. Number of attendance of the
Remuneration Committee meetings are disclosed under
the section headed “Meeting Records” above.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012
with terms of reference to deal with the nomination of the
Director, which includes reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to recommend matters in
relation to appointments or re-appointments of Directors.
This is to ensure that the composition of the Board meets
the requirements of the Listing Rules and that the Board
is capable to fulfill its obligations in terms of fiduciary
duties and can act in the best interest of the members of
the Company. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties. The
specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination
Committee comprises all INEDs, namely Mr. HUNG Cho
Sing, Mr. CHAN Yik Pun and Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun.
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Two meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2019 to review the composition
of the Board and rotation of retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting; and to take up the delegated
responsibilities from the Board to review the Board
Diversity Policy as approved by the Board. Number of
attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings are
disclosed under the section headed “Meeting Records”
above.
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Nomination Policy
The Board has adopted the following policy for the
nomination of directors (the “Nomination Policy”).

Selection Criteria

In determining the suitability of a candidate, the
Nomination Committee and the Board shall consider the
potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board
in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence
and gender diversity. The Nomination Committee and the
Board shall consider the following selection criteria, which
are not meant to be exhaustive:

o the candidate’s personal ethics, reputation, character
and integrity;

o the candidate's qualifications, skills, knowledge,
business judgment and experience that are relevant
to the operations of the Group;

o the diversity perspectives set out in the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company (as amended from
to time);

o the candidate’s availability including time

commitment to discharge his or her responsibility as
a Director, including being able to devote sufficient
time to attend Board meetings, participate in
induction, trainings and other board and Company
associated activities (In the case of a candidate who
will be nominated as an independent non-executive
Director will be holding his or her seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, the Nomination
Committee should consider the reasons given by the
candidate for being able to devote sufficient time to
discharge his or her responsibility as an independent
non-executive Director.);
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o the candidate for the position of an independent

non-executive Director must comply with the
independence criteria as prescribed under the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time);

° the current size and composition of the Board, the
needs of the Board and the respective committees of
the Company;

o the succession planning of members of the Board
to ensure the leadership continuity and smooth
functioning of the Group; and

o any other factors that the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee and the Board shall ensure
that the composition of the Board is in conformity with
the laws of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and all
other applicable laws and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

The recruitment, identification,
recommendation, nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of each proposed Director
shall be assessed and considered by the Nomination
Committee and the Board against the Selection Criteria as
set out in this Policy. In the context of appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board:

evaluation,
selection and new

o the Nomination Committee may take such measures
that it considers appropriate in connection with
its identification and evaluation of candidates,
including, amongst others, considering referrals from
the Directors, shareholders, management, advisors
of the Company;
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. the Nomination Committee shall identify and e REZBSAHBIBTEREAND
ascertain the character, qualification, knowledge and TQ B HBAK R W IREA
experience of the candidate and undertake adequate ETAIPHNRRBRESLS K&
due diligence in respect of such candidate; and

. the Nomination Committee shall make o REEBESA TEFT % I IRE A B
recommendations by submitting the candidate’s AN R TESE %Fg

personal profile to the Board for its consideration.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member HMEHZTAMBEEETSKEMS ' 1RF
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall make é/\.z./,je“@ % it ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%
recommendations to the Board for its consideration and  EAZEREAE F2HER
recommendation for the candidate to stand for re-election

at general meeting.

For each proposed new appointment or re-appointment HEBMEZETEENHNEZTXNETEZEMS
of a Director, the Nomination Committee shall obtain all REZZESERERSHSEN KL ETR
applicable declarations and undertaking as required under  BIJEU{S AT/ i F3 B9 &2 AR A &G ©

the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Listing Rules.

In the case of a nomination for the position of an HREBUIFNTESNBRT BEREE
independent non-executive Director, the Nomination  Z@BERZMEBERBAFAE ETHRBIFTE
Committee shall ensure that the concerned candidate BN AR LE

meets the independence criteria as prescribed under the

Listing Rules.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters  ¥HBREARBEASG L28 (REER)
relating to the recommendation of candidates to stand for HFIBEE BEESHARLIRTIE-
election (and re-election) at a general meeting.

The ultimate responsibility for the selection and &?Ei%ﬂ”)ﬁiv\ﬁﬁi$§
appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board. fé

ﬂﬂH’r

\
/
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing corporate
governance functions. This includes developing and
reviewing Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements etc. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Board has reviewed the

Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's
system of risk management and internal controls and for
reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the assets of the Group. These risk
management and internal control systems are designed to
manage risks rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve
business objective, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss; and to ensure the reliability of financial information
for both internal use and external publication and to
provide reasonable assurance against material statement
or loss and achievement of the Group’s objective.

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the
business and operations, relevant internal control
procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, controlling
over capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring the reliability of financial information
used for business and publication. These procedures are
monitored and reviewed from time to time and updated
where necessary.

T EE R AE
HRYERYCXERLZES HILHBES
CSEERTEEE AR L IBRIESE R

R ARREREAZBREER RES
EafEREREEINFETEERRR
ERARAZBREERTEEZRLES
REFS- RNBE_ZT-NF+-_A=1T—8
HFE EFgeRIdARRBEERER
ZIBR R ER

[ s i B e A0 B
EEAEERASERKREE NAIPE
EEGRBRTRERREERAEBEE
REMTZEB -ZERBREEMANIPEILR
GEEEREMIEBRREERERBERY
Eg BERTSFERERRKIBRIEMH
BEMIEBYE ZRFE  MEREAIER X
NS 2 M ER 2 A SR E  WIREE
BZIRE - AP RBRBRERRKBRZIER
RiEEEBRAERBIF-

EREEBRABEZRF 2T ERNY

ﬁﬁ%%%&zL%ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%% R R
MEERFEERY  UWREEETHKIER
MAKEE EHERNFAX ZARFE
AR B R FE IR 355 K th W BT R B 75 B RO A]
Flt-2FEFETREERNMRN T E
JiEL Ry JEE BB R

A—RAEBAERAF 2010 £ 37



Corporate Governance Report

_I_I_/rf\—\ #&:‘

EXRE

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key
processes of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the
likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritizes the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the
risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change
of situation; and

o Report the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.
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The management has carried out periodic review of
the procedures and the implementation of the risk
management and internal control (“"RM and IC") systems,
including areas covered accounting, business and legal
compliance.

The Board has in place an internal audit function within
the Group as required under code provision C.2.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. To further strengthen the
internal control of the Group, the Company has engaged
an independent professional adviser (the “Internal
Control Adviser”) to perform independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC
systems. The Internal Control Advisor has conducted an
annual review of and made recommendations to improve
the effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC systems (the
“RM and IC Review").

During the year ended 31 December, 2019, the Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the Internal Control
Adviser, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s RM and
IC Systems in various aspects including revenue and receipt
cycle, cash management and treasury cycle. The Internal
Control Adviser carried out the RM and IC Review on the
above cycles and executed the RM and IC Review which
involves the following tasks:

1. Conducting interviews with relevant management
and staff members relating to the risk management
and internal controls

2. Conducting walk-through relating to the RM and IC
Review
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3. Reviewing relevant documentation relating to the

RM and IC Review

4. Identifying significant deficiencies in the design of
the risk management and internal controls

5. Communicate the significant findings with the
management so as to confirm the factual accuracy
of the findings

After the RM and IC Review, the management provided an
action plan so as to mitigate those identified deficiencies
in a timely manner. All internal control findings would
be followed up closely to ensure that the action plan is
implemented accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
was satisfied that the Group’s RM and IC processes are
adequate to meet the needs of the Group in its current
business environment and that nothing has come to its
attention to cause the Board to believe the Group’s RM
and IC Systems are inadequate. Moreover, the existing
RM and IC Systems are effective and adequate, and will
continue to be reviewed, added on or updated to provide
for changes in the operating environment.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of Inside
Information in respect of procedures and internal control
for the handling and dissemination of inside information
in a timely manner pursuant to Rule 17.19 of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provision under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
the preparation of the Group’s financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, as well as the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They believe that
such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Group's affairs and its results. The Directors confirm, to
the best of their knowledge, information and belief, and
having made all reasonable enquiries, that they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cause significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The reporting responsibilities of the Directors and the
external auditor of the Company, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 57 to
64.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
fee paid/payable to Elite Partners CPA Limited in respect
of audit and non-audit services were HK$480,000 (2078
HK$450,000) and HK$nil (2018: HK$nil), respectively.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. ONG King Keung, who is an associate director of an
external service provider, reports to the executive director
of the Company and assists the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently. He has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to Article 89 of the articles of association of
the Company, extraordinary general meeting(s) shall be
convened on the written requisition of (i) any two or more
members of the Company; or (ii) any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong (19/F, Yat Chau Building, 262 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
(Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands) specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided
that such requisitionist(s) held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company, which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not
proceed duly to convene the meeting within 21 days from
the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
in which these meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of
deposit of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 161 of the articles of association of
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting, unless a notice is signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) who is duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting. Such notice
is given with his intention to propose such person for
election as well as a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office (19/F, Yat Chau Building,
262 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong) or at the
registration office (Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong).
This must be provided at the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at
least seven days and that the period for lodgment of such
notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting. Details of the procedures
for nomination of Directors for election are available on
the Company’s website (www.unity913.com).

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who have enquiries about shareholders’
rights or have enquiries to the Board may write to the
Company Secretary of the Company at the principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 19/F, Yat Chau Building,
262 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
For the avoidance of doubt, the shareholder(s) must
provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order for the Company to reply.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Board established a Shareholders” Communication
Policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation
to its communication with the shareholders and investors,
with the objective of ensuring effective and timely
dissemination of information to shareholders.

Dividend Policy

According to the dividend policy adopted by the Company,
in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account the following factors:

the Group's future operations and earnings;

o the Group's capital requirements and surplus;

o the general financial conditions of the Group;

o contractual restrictions on payment of dividends;
and

o any other factors that the Board consider relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company
shall be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
shall be subject to any restrictions under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association
of the Company. The dividend policy of the Company
will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there
can be no assurance that dividends will be proposed or
declared in any particular amount for any given period.
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The Board aims to ensure that its shareholders and
investors are well informed of key business imperatives
in a timely and accurate manner. Extensive information
about the Company’s activities was provided in its annual
report, interim report, announcements, and circulars which
are made available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company (www.unity913.com). Printed copies of
annual report, interim report, circular, notice of meetings
and proxy forms will also be sent to the shareholders of
the Company in a timely manner as required under the
Listing Rules.

Constitutional Documents of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has not made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company. An updated version of
the Company’s Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association is available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company (www.unity913.com).
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ABOUT THIS ESG REPORT

The Group is pleased to present our Environmental,
Social and Governance ("ESG") Report for the Year. This
ESG Report illustrates the sustainability performance and
strategies of the Group.

This ESG Report was prepared with reference to the
Social and Governance Reporting Guide,
which is the Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. We have adopted
the principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency in this report. Please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report section of this Annual Report for more
details of our corporate governance practices.

Environmental,

Unless otherwise specified, the information disclosed in
this report covers the financial year from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2019 (the “Year”). The reporting scope
covers all our operations in Hong Kong.

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

The Group fully recognize the importance of sustainability
in our long-term development. We have been striving to
be a socially responsible corporate citizen and regarding
sustainability as one of our core strategies. The Group has
established a risk management policy for the identification,
assessment and reporting of existing and potential risks
associated with us, including ESG risks. Our management
has formulated strategies and implemented internal control
procedures in responding to the risks identified. The audit
committee of the Group reviews and evaluates the internal
control system from time to time to ensure that it remains
effective in the ever-changing operating environment.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to listening and responding to the
expectations of our stakeholders. We believe that views
and ideas from various stakeholder groups would help
us further improve our strategy and performance in the
course of achieving sustainable development. A variety
of communication channels between the Group and the
stakeholders have been established, such as holding the
annual general meeting and other shareholder meetings
regularly, maintaining the corporate website, publication
of the annual report, interim report and other information,
etc.

We are always seeking opportunities to let stakeholders
express their opinions and concerns. We sincerely invite
you to send us comments about this ESG Report. Should
you have any questions or suggestions to our work
on sustainability, please contact us through email by
investors@unity913.com. Your feedback will be highly
appreciated.

Identifying Material Issues

In addition to the above channels, we have also invited our
stakeholders to complete an online survey so as to collect
their opinion and identify their key concerns. Combining
the survey result and the assessment of the management,
the Group identified “Quality of Investment”, "“Data
Protection and Privacy” and "“Employee Benefits” as
the most important ESG issues to the Group and its
stakeholders. This process helped the Group to adjust its
priorities in sustainability, align with its stakeholders, and
focus on the material and relevant aspects.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Responsibility to Our Stakeholders

The Group is devoted to making quality investments for
its shareholders. We have been making our investment
decisions in a responsible and prudent manner, balancing
profitability and risks. In order to protect the interest of
our shareholders, when a potential investment opportunity
arises, our investment team will conduct assessments to
minimize the risk of making the investment.

Data security has been an increasing concern in this
information society. It is the Group’s obligation to ensure
the confidentiality of data in our hand, which include
personal information of employees,
business partners and identified individuals. Confidential
data is collected and processed with care to avoid
inadvertent data leakage or unauthorized access and
the use of data is strictly limited by the relevant contract
terms. During the Year, the Group has not identified any
material non-compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Cap. 486) or any other applicable laws for data
privacy.

information of our

The Group considers that issues about products and
services health and safety, advertisement and labelling are
irrelevant to our business nature. Thus no disclosure on
these topics is needed in this ESG Report.

Our People

Talents are one of the most valuable assets in the
investment industry. Professional expertise and market
knowledge of the staff are crucial to the continuous
operation and sustainable development of the Group.
Hence, we have been dedicating to the attraction,
professional development and retainment of qualified
personnel by providing an ideal working environment.
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Employment

We are a responsible employer and care about our staff.
The Group strictly abides by the applicable laws and
regulations, including the Employment Ordinance (Cap.
57), the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282),
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485) and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608).

The standard working hours, paid leaves, rest periods, and
dismissal policy are stipulated in our employment contracts
signed with employees. Our staff are entitled to sick
leaves, injury leaves or maternity leaves, amongst other

rights protected by the Labour Legislations of Hong Kong.

Fair and equal employment and recruitment procedures
are adopted within the Group. The recruitment process
for all job vacancies involves reviewing job applications,
selecting candidates for interviews, interviewing candidates
and obtaining approval before giving any job offers.
Recruitment is based on business needs and candidates’
experiences and abilities,
pregnancy, disability, age, family status,
race, sexual orientation, religion and nationality. Any forms
of discrimination are prohibited. When there is a dismissal,
sufficient notice period would be given in accordance with
the relevant employment contract.

regardless of their gender,
marital status,
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The Group is dedicated to providing staff with equal
opportunities in recruitment, promotion, remuneration
and benefits. Our remuneration takes into account the
individual qualification, performance, experience and
market salary levels. Our remuneration package also
includes the following along with the basic salary:

Five-day working week;

o Medical insurance coverage;

MPF retirement benefits; and

o Share option scheme

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, or other benefits and welfare.

Labour Standards

The Group is devoted to adhering to the local labour
laws and standards, such as Employment of Children
Regulations under the Employment Ordinance. The Group
does not tolerate any forms of child labour and forced
labour. We ensure that all newly recruited employees
reach the minimum age for legal employment and avoid
all discriminatory requirements throughout our recruitment
process.

During the Year, the Group has not identified any
significant non-compliance incidents related to child
labour, forced labour or other issues on labour standards.
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Health and Safety BREHEZZ

It is the Group's obligation to provide a healthy and safe ASEEEFBAEEETIRHEERZEZMNT
workspace for its staff. Our employees work in the office  {ERZE-HMINEEENRAE TIERITE@E
without facing significant occupational health and safety FREAMNBERRELLZZER - AE—T#
risks. In order to further avoid work injury, raise the ®T/& REEINERELTEEHNEE
awareness of health and safety among the staff and create  EEMTIEXX L IS EREUA N ETE

a healthy working culture, we have adopted the following

measures:

Strictly prohibit indoor smoking
BEZRRE

Ensure adequate ventilation and suitable lighting

BRTEZNBERNEENRSA

Provide adjustable office chairs and computer monitors

RUTTABEOR A BN BB TR

Keep common areas clean and tidy
REAHEHEREE
Provide occupational health guidelines for staff

RESRERRERES

By taking the above measures, no cases in relation to work BB ERER - ail #5 E - 5OZAN G A I 4 RO £
injuries or fatalities were recorded during the Year. The — T/{EsiSbT-fHRIRI BN - ANEBE W E IR
Group has not identified any non-compliance with the A& (BiEZ 2 REREH) (5509%)
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) or  sREHMEBERFE LT 2HEBAEENEB
other regulations related to occupational health and safety. e
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Development and Training

Staff training and development is key for the Group to
retain talents and maintain industry competitiveness. We
encourage all directors and employees to continuously
develop their job-related skills and the professional
standard by participating in training programs organized
by external agencies. The company secretary has been
providing updated information and latest developments
of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to all directors to ensure that they fully
understand and comply with these requirements.

Supply Chain Management

We do not have many suppliers and the supply chain of
the Group is relatively simple as a result of our business
nature. Our suppliers include securities brokers, service
providers for legal, advisory and other professional services,
as well as miscellaneous suppliers for daily operations.
Our suppliers shall comply with all laws and regulations in
relation to business conduct, environmental protection and
other prohibited business practices.

The Group usually considers the business scale and
reputation when choosing suppliers. If a supplier is found
contravening our policy or contractual provision, we will
cease future cooperation until the situation has been
rectified. During the Year, the Group has not identified any
noncompliance or significant adverse impacts regarding
business ethics, environmental protection, human rights
and labour practices among our major suppliers.
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Anti-Corruption

The Group has zero-tolerance for misconduct and strictly
prohibits any form of corruption, bribery or fraud within
our business. We will not hesitate to take disciplinary
actions in the event of any confirmed misconduct case.
During the Year, no legal cases related to corruption were
brought against the Group or its employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group does not generate significant environmental
impact thanks to our office-based operation. Nevertheless,
we understand that everyone has a role in environmental
management and sustainable development. We strictly
adhere to the local environmental legislation and standards
and strive to be a green corporation by minimizing the
eco-footprints of our business.

Emissions

Our business in the office consumes limited energy and
water, so the direct impact on the environment is minimal.
Most of our greenhouse gas ("GHG") emission comes from
the indirect emission of electricity use for air-conditioning,
lighting and other office equipment. The electricity supply,
water supply and sewage discharge of our office are
wholly regulated by the owner of the premises and the
property management. Therefore, our electricity and water
consumption data could not be obtained for disclosure.
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Use of Resources BEREA
The Group applies the principles of energy efficiency and ~ ANEBBBE A & ERAMELRER
reasonable use of resources through implementing the ~ &EFAMERE]-

measures below.

Keep room temperature at an energy-efficient and comfortable level, which is between 24-26 degree Celsius

P AENERRISEHREESTEAIKTE (BI24°CHI26°CZ2H)

Make use of natural light and install energy efficient lighting fixtures

ERBERKRREDRERER

Give priorities to electrical appliances with energy-saving labels in procurement

BAERBRENEERNERAnm

Switch off unnecessary lighting and office equipment while not in use

RS RRARFEATNRARE

Instead of setting a screen saver, put computers into sleep mode if idled

BEFAESKE  BEMIAEBERRECMIREARERERRF

Any leaks, cracks or damage of water pipes will be promptly reported to the property management
for timely maintenance

—BRBKEHREMRR - REFBR - SUNREYREEETREGHES

We believe our resources consumption and GHG emission
have been reduced by the above measures and will
continue to explore potential ways to further reduce our
impact on the environment and natural resources.

Waste management

General refuse from our office mainly includes used paper,
aluminium cans and plastic bottles. We do not produce
tangible goods, do not generate hazardous waste and
do not consume packaging material. During the Year, the
amount of non-hazardous waste generated in our office is
estimated to be less than 0.1 tonnes (2018: less than 0.1
tonnes).

For waste sorting, the Group collects various paper
products, such as waste paper, letters and envelopes for
recycling and disposes rechargeable batteries at specified
recycling points.
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Principle of 4Rs

We save the environment by cutting resources
consumption of our operation. The Group upholds the
principle of “4Rs”, namely Reduce, Reuse, Replace and
Recycle and carry out the actions below:

Reduce

mLEH BT R EE)

Reuse single-sided paper

EREAERRR

fax if possible

Replace

4R R Al
BM@EBRELSRERBERERRE
IRBoAEEIZE[4R] R A B A A
(Reduce) * E £ 5 A (Reuse) * X % (Replace) &
1EIRF A (Recycle) » IEREXNLA T1TH) -

Encourage duplex printing and photocopying

Reuse pen shafts with ink refills instead of discarding the pens

MRECRERERER  MFEERARERER

Use electronic ways of communication, such as emails instead of letters or

mAeT - RARTEN  MABTFBARBEERER

ﬁg - Arrange video conferences or other telecommunication means rather than

==: 007379

Recycle

business trips to avoid carbon emissions from travelling when feasible

WMAAT  DRAERNEMEFBEASRNRELE - URPERTME

Send waste papers to paper mills or scrap paper collectors for recycling,
except for papers containing confidential information

g dl):] BASRBE N NES  BSR

TR R AR W R EET E UL

A—BAEBAERAF 2010 £ BB



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE -2 NEARS

Community Contribution

The Group cares about the development of the society and
is committed to foster a mutually beneficial relationship
between the Group and its community. We encourage
our staff to join community activities such as participating
in volunteer services or providing monetary support to
charitable organizations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Az B S

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the members of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
65 to 147, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

i) Fair value measurement of equity investment at
fair value through profit or loss
Key audit matter
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had equity
investment at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") that mainly comprise of investments in
unlisted equity securities which were measured
at fair value which categorised within Level 3 fair
value hierarchy, with the aggregate fair value of
approximately HK$148,319,000.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

i)

Fair value measurement of equity investment at
fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)

Given that the investments were unlisted equity
investments with no direct observable data in
determining the fair values of the investments at
the end of the reporting date, various valuation
techniques had been adopted by the Group to
determine the fair values of the investments.

Since the estimation of the fair values of such
unlisted equity investments is complex and highly
subjective and require significant management
judgement, we had identified the fair value
measurement of equity investment at FVPL as key
audit matters.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

We obtained valuation reports from an independent
valuer engaged by the Group (the “Valuer”)
to assist the management of the Company in
estimating the fair value measurement of such
unlisted equity investments at the end of the
reporting period.

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objective of the Valuer.

We discussed with management of the Group how
the fair values of the unlisted equity investments as
at the end of the reporting period were determined.

We discussed with the Valuer and the
management of the Group the appropriateness
of the methodologies and assumptions being
used in arriving at the fair values of the unlisted
equity investments based on our knowledge and
understanding of the investments as well as the
information available to us.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE BE B G SERRABERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  fEE (&)

ERBESZBCEAETERNBIEF &
THEER T EXRAE R T EREMRE

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: JE o A% BREM T -
. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement o Bnl K BT A B R BRGF S EE AR T 8 B4R

of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

B P B WK T EE AR R E
@ RET MITERREF AR ZE
[\ DA R ERAS 5T = M B M B AR
B ERAZBAMERNER - BN
HEFARE S R ER E EERER
BB - SO B A ERES 2 L
DR 1t 7K BE % 30 R AR RF 1 B B ) B X 5
MR EREBEEERMEHHERN

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Leung Man Kin with
Practising Certificate number P07174.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Are B

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET R BETT
Gross proceeds from disposal HEXRZHFWHAESRELE
of trading securities 41,178 27,099
Loss from the sale of HEZBBREAABIIE
listed equity investments (EBEREAAEIER])
at fair value through ZETRAREZER
profit or loss (“FVPL") (101,631) (15,402)
Revenue W &= 353 46
Changes in fair value of listed BRBREAAEIERZ
equity investments at FVPL FHRAREZ AR ER 74,578 (40,876)
Changes in fair value of unlisted EBIEZZAABIIEZ
equity investments at FVPL FETRAKREZ AREZE (32,932) (58,743)
Impairment of financial assets BBHEK AR eREEY
at amortised costs, net AR R (2,460) 195
Other operating expenses Hih 8 52 (8,375) (6,347)
Finance costs BE AR (170) (2,143)
Loss before tax BRBAIER (70,637) (123,270)
Income tax PG - -
Loss and total comprehensive AT ERFE AEW
loss for the year attributable FRABERZHEEELHE
to equity holders of
the Company (70,637) (123,270)
HKS$ HK$
B ks
(Restated)
(&)
Loss per share BREE
- Basic and diluted - ZVE - (0.38) (0.66)

A—BAEBAERAF 2010 £ 65



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R B IR
As at 31 December 2019
REF-AF+=A=+—H

2019 2018
—2-nE T )\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K1 it BT T BT T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Equity investments at fair value BRBEREANE
through profit or loss FIBR 2 IR AR E 11 148,319 181,251
Current assets REBEE
Equity investments at fair value FRBEREALE
through profit or loss HIBR 2 IRARE 11 98,220 148,545
Deposits and prepayments Be RENRK 221 581
Due from securities brokers JE UK 78 5 A8 40 SRR 13 3,909 10,466
Other receivable H b e W sk 18 14 15,394 22,854
Bank balances and cash WITHEENMRE 297 456
118,041 182,902
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to securities brokers BRBEBHERLZFIE 15 - 18,311
Other payables and accruals HoAth B R & B ET
=] 1,291 551
Bond payables e & Z 17 - 10,000
1,291 28,862
Net current assets REBEEZFE 116,750 154,040
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERRBDER 265,069 335,291
NET ASSETS EEFHE 265,069 335,291
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

As at 31 December 2019

R-ZFE—NFF+ZH=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt it BET T BEETT

Capital and reserves IR 2 R 6
Share capital [N 18 186,232 186,232
Reserves & 78,837 149,059
TOTAL EQUITY RS 265,069 335,291
HK$ HK$
B ke
Net asset value per share BEREEFE 20 0.14 0.18

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of EB&HEEFEN_ZET_TF=A_++tH

Directors on 27 March 2020. HoE R IR F) 3 o
SHUM Kit Lan Anita HU Xiaoting
LR tH 5

Director Director

EE EZE

A—BRAEBAERARF 2010 £ 67



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FAETMERK

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B it BT T BT T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES K
Cash generated from operations LEBMEHES 23 9,658 12,117
Dividends received Fr iR 8 353 45
Interest received FriS 7 & - 1
Interest paid 2AFE (170) (3,002)
Net cash generated from REEBRB

operating activities ReFHE 9,841 9,161
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Repayment of loan payables BEERNER - (10,000)
Repayment of bond payables EREMNES (10,000) -
Net cash used in financing Al & E B Fr A

activities REFE (10,000) (10,000)
Net decrease in cash and ReRkBREEEYZ

cash equivalents Vo RADE R} (159) (839)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHUzREeRBEELE

beginning of year By 456 1,295
Cash and cash equivalents RERZREEREAS

at end of year represented ZEY(2HEBE

by bank balances and cash THERRE) 297 456
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

/\\/ \

A P% % j("“ >5 Heh

EER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BT NFF A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KAREREEAEL
Share
option Accumulated Total
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve loss reserve Total
RE R EE BRERE R ER REA Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETT BETT BETR BETR
At 1 January 2019 RZF-NE—-A—8 186,232 1,051,569 501 (903,011) 149,059 335,291
Loss and total comprehensive loss FAFBRZEFRELE
for the year - - - (70,637) (70,637) (70,637)
Contributions and distributions RERAE
Grant of share options RinERE - - 415 - 415 415
Lapse of share options BB AR 2R - - (110) 110 - -
Total transactions with owners BEBARSAE - - 305 10 415 415
At 31 December 2019 R=B-AE+=A=+-8 186,232 1,051,569 806 (973,538) 78,837 265,069
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARRERREAER
Investment Share
revaluation option  Accumulated Total
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve reserve loss reserve Total
AR RipEE REEHERE  BRERS ZiER FERas CHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2018 —Z-\F-A—-H 186,232 1,051,569 32,958 110 (812,108) 272,529 458,761
Reclassification of investment revaluation  1RI5 & #5817 & £ 8| £95%
reserve under HKFRS 9 ENDRREERRERE - - (32,958) - 32,367 (591) (591)
At 1 January 2018 (Restated) WZZ-N\F-A—B(LE|) 186,232 1,051,569 - 110 (779,741) 271,938 458,170
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRAFERZEFRAE
for the year - - - - (123,270 (123,270 (123,270)
Contributions and distributions RERDE
Grant of share options Rt RE - - - 391 - 391 391
Total transactions with owners REEARSEE - - - 391 - 391 391
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-NE+=A=1+-8 186,232 1,051,569 - 501 (903,011) 149,059 335,291

E—REEBKRBERA

Y7 2010 #3% 69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Unity Investments Holdings Limited was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address
of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of this annual report. The
principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and principal activities of its subsidiaries
are detailed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs"”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements also comply
with applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2018 consolidated financial
statements except for the adoption of the following
new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group
and effective from the current year.
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Notes to the Conso
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
The Group has adopted, for the first time, the
following new/revised HKFRSs:

Annual Improvements  2075-2017 Cycle
to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Employee Benefits

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 16 Leases

idated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
r e R R T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE=F-NF+ A=+ —HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Lease

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and related Interpretations
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. It significantly changes, among others, the
lessee accounting by replacing the dual-model under
HKAS 17 with a single model which requires a lessee
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
the rights and obligations created by all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. For lessor accounting, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently. HKFRS 16 also requires enhanced
disclosures to be provided by lessees and lessors.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time at
1 January 2019 (i.e. the date of initial application,
the "DIA") using the modified retrospective
approach in which comparative information has not
been restated. Instead, the Group recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 16 as
an adjustment to the balance of accumulated losses
at the DIA.

The Group also elected to use the transition practical
expedient not to reassess whether a contract was,
or contained, a lease at the DIA and the Group
applied HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
to contracts entered into or changed on or after the
DIA that are identified as leases applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Conso

e + 2
WRE RS R R M RE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

2,

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued)

As lessee

Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, lease contracts
were classified as operating or finance lease in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies
applicable prior to the DIA.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group accounted
for the leases in accordance with the transition
provisions of HKFRS 16 and the Group’s accounting
policies applicable from the DIA.

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating
leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases previously classified as operating
leases at the DIA, except for leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value, and the Group
applied the following practical expedients on a
lease-by-lease basis.

(@)  Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

(b)  Adjusted the right-of-use assets at the DIA by
the provision for onerous leases recognised
immediately before the DIA by applying
HKAS 37, as an alternative to performing an
impairment review at the DIA.

() Did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities to leases for which the lease term
ends within 12 months of the DIA.

idated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Conso
ire BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-AZ+—HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued)

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating

leases (Continued)

(d) Excluded initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use assets at the
DIA.

(e)  Used hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

At the DIA, except for those that were previously or
will be accounted for as investment property using
the fair value model, right-of-use assets were, on a
lease-by-lease basis, measured at either,

(@  their carrying amount as if HKFRS 16 had
been applied since the commencement date,
but discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the DIA; or

(b) an amount equal to the lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised immediately before the DIA.

As all the Group's leases for which the lease term
ends within 12 months of the DIA, the adoption of
HKFRS 16 does not have any significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements at the DIA and
for the current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements is historical
cost except for financial assets at FVPL which
are measured at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and all of
its subsidiaries as at 31 December each year. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting year as that of the Company
using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the
recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date
basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only
when (i) the Group’s contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (ii) the
Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises the financial asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing them, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the
change in the business model (the “reclassification
date”).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost
if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
include deposits, due from securities brokers,
other receivable and bank balances and cash.

idated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EEEHBEE(Z)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRMIA (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
2)  Mandatory FVOCI 2)  EHEFEBEME E W
R 1ESIR

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory EoREERFME A TEE

FVOCI if both of the following conditions are B EBIEERASZRBIEBEREAR

met and is not designated as at FVPL: B AlZze Rt & ERR

MEREMEENREAAE
k%

(i) itis held within a business model whose (i) ZemEER—ES T
objective is to hold financial assets in ABFA S/ EE K
order to collect contractual cash flows ERBREREREEZ
and for sale; and EBEXFE &

(i) its contractual terms give rise on (i) ZeBMEEZANIER
specified dates to cash flows that are EREFERHELRS
solely payments of principal and interest MEEAXNA® KK
on the principal amount outstanding. BEREHE -

The financial asset is subsequently measured PREEEBEARBEE

at fair value. Interest calculated using the FERERMEEFEZNE

effective interest method, impairment gains B U 55 88 18 DA B SINEE Lk 2

or losses and foreign exchange gains and NS B R o KU &

losses are recognised in profit or loss. Other HEEREMEENRERE
gains or losses are recognised in other ZeMEERIER BT
comprehensive income until the financial asset BEKIEERE BEREM

is derecognised. When the financial asset is ZEWRERZ R E S

derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss BENHOEEBRREREND

previously recognised in other comprehensive -

income is reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

3)

4)

Designated FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an investment
in an equity instrument that is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies in
other comprehensive income. The classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

These equity investments are subsequently
measured at fair value and are not subject to
impairment. Dividends are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other gains or losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and shall not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOC],
including financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL, and financial assets
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not
include any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets. Dividend or interest income
is presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.

idated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Conso
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
4) Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial
guarantee contract or not a designated
and effective hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial
recognition as at FVPL only if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses
on them on different bases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE=F-NF+ A=+ —HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses ("ECL") on financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost, to which the
impairment requirements apply in accordance with
HKFRS 9. The Group measures a loss allowance for
a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime
ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If
the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls)
over the expected life of the financial instrument.
A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value
of the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to an entity under the contract and the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument while 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

o the debtor’s failure to make payments of
principal or interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
or may have a significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE_

E-NFT—A=F—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk
A financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and

(iii)  adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial asset
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired include observable data about the
following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower.

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event.

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset

at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE=F-NF+ A=+ —HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the
Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the contractual cash flows on a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. The Group has a policy
of writing off the gross carrying amount based on
historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that
are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised
in profit or loss.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that the
Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets
any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only
when the liability is extinguished, that is, when
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other
payables and accrual, due to securities broker and
bond payables. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE=F-NF+ A=+ —HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, net of bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset is capitalised as part of cost of that
asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, when it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can
be made. Expenditures for which a provision has
been recognised are charged against the related
provision in the year in which the expenditures
are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the amount provided
is the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

Applicable from 1 January 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease at inception of the contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption
to short-term leases and low-value asset leases.
Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts
for each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

Applicable before 1 January 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

O 2 ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Unity Investments Holdings Limited

FTESHEE (&)

B

HB-F-AF—F—HEEH
AEEREBHNNERAEEORE
RABEHE - WMEHNRBENE
48 T — BB i) (R 4E & AT 38 Bl &
EEMZEN RN REER
BEHE-

1ER A
AEBMYCHHERREEEER
EREFAERBR 2 - ZEHERBEZ
HENREEGEIRNHEHNER
ABRAX -

AEBEDEEBEAIARBASERT LT
DBEHFFTHE AN D 0 AU & (E
HEAKE D MEFBRIEEEAR
RED ABRIEREBHEEMKE D

R-FE-ANF—F—HFEA
WA Z R AS B R B TR A
R EmEETAEA ZEELD
DESBMEMN-FMEEMHELOD
BREEE-

RELEHOENZHSZERA
WEHNEREERSET R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
r e R R T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE=F-NF+ A=+ —HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) TESTBER(E)
Employee benefits EEEF
Short term employee benefits BHIESEF

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
eligible employees. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independent administered fund.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered
services in exchange for shares or rights over shares.
The cost of such transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair value of
share options granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in
a reserve within equity. The fair value is determined
using the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account any market conditions and non-vesting
conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the vesting conditions
are to be fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the entitlement of relevant employees to the
award is no longer conditional on the satisfaction
of any non-market vesting conditions (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest ultimately
is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior periods is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of review, with
a corresponding adjustment to the reserve within
equity.

When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) FESHBE(£Z)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued) URGBDAERZNARRS (&)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued) BnBZEXE (&)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured at
fair value of the goods or services received, except
where the fair value cannot be reliably estimated,
in which case they are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the
goods or the counterparty renders the services.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, any
deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investment in subsidiaries except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Related parties/connected parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group.
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FAEMBERRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE_

E-NFT—A=F—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties/connected parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEEHBE(E)
Related parties/connected parties (Continued) A BEAL(E)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) HEE T EMGE  BIZE
following conditions applies: (Continued) BEASBEHE: (£)
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has (vii) @) NFTERIATHE
significant influence over the entity or REEATENLE
is a member of the key management ZERB(AZEBZH
personnel of the entity (or of a parent RAEZEBEEEX
of the entity). 8o
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group (viii ZEBIEMBEERZ
of which it is a part, provides key ERKE R A MARKE
management personnel services to the IAEEG QAR E
Group or to the parent of the Group. EEBAEBERG-

—RAT OB REKBERRE
HERBIRXZPATERALTIR
RATEEZREKE B

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(a)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic (@) RBAATZTFZEEBHK
partner; FERH:
(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic (b) ZBATZEHEBIREZH

2R

partner; and

ZAANTHZB AT ZEBE
HREBRHFZIEBAC

(c)  dependents of that person or that person’s (c)
spouse or domestic partner.

NI EZE%EP 2k PN
BAZHEBR é%ﬁ%’?%

In the definition of a related party, an associate
includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint

venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

In addition, transactions with connected parties as
defined under the Listing Rules are disclosed in the
Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE=F-NF+ A=+ —HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) FESITHE(E)
Critical accounting estimates and judgement EEgH AT RHE

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and judgements are made by the management
in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. They affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going
basis and are based on experience and relevant
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of
revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The fair value of unlisted equity investments have
been valued based on the expected cash flows
discounted at current rates applicable for items
with similar terms and risk characteristics. These
valuations require the Group to make estimates
about expected future cash flows, credit risk,
volatility and discount rates, and hence they are
subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the unlisted
equity investments at 31 December 2019 was
HK$148,319,000 (2018: HK$181,251,000). Further
details are included in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements respectively.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in
subsidiaries has suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKFRS 9 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate

EEENRmEEE M ERREFL
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K& 2 AR 1EAE148,319,000
T (=ZF—/14F . Em181,251,000
L) o HE—HF B RER Y BE]RE
BEEE11 5212 °

REE 2 a2 RE R FEW B E

AEBESFREFLGERE36
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ERURAE - X 38 18 & 8 B 75 i %
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H B) 2 et RBGESEITE R -
ZEFEBRR AR ZMBRE MR

discount rates. Future changes in financial SEHRBTEBREBBE 2 LA
performance and position of these entities would B ERREE-

affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause
the adjustments of their carrying amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-AZ+—HILFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has

not early adopted

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to

HKFRS 9, HKAS
39 and HKFRS 7

Insurance Contracts’

Definition of Business?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material*

Interest Rate Benchmark
Return?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021.

? Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020.
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3.

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments
to HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
consider that the application of all new and
amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs is unlikely to
have a material impact on the Group's financial
position and performance as well as disclosure in
foreseeable future.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “New Framework”) and the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and
prudence;
o introduces a new asset definition that focuses

on rights and a new liability definition that
is likely to be broader than the definition it
replaces, but does not change the distinction
between a liability and an equity instrument;

idated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-AZ+—HILFE

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

2018 (the “"New Framework”) and the

Amendments to References to the Conceptual

Framework in HKFRS Standards (Continued)

o discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance
on how to select a measurement basis for a
particular asset or liability;

o states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that
only in exceptional circumstances other
comprehensive income will be used and only
for income or expenses that arise from a
change in the current value of an asset or
liability; and

o discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to
the New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still
referred to the previous versions of the framework.
These amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with
earlier application permitted. Other than specific
standards which still refer to the previous versions
of the framework, the Group will rely on the New
Framework on its effective date in determining
the accounting policies especially for transactions,
events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt
with under the accounting standards.
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4. REVENUE 4.
The Group is principally engaged in the investment
in listed and unlisted companies. Revenue recognised
during the year are as follows:

idated Financial Statements

iy 28
AEBEIEXRGANE LM EIELET
NEAFEDHERZWZHINT

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue g

Interest income ) B WA - 1

Dividend income from listed equity 2 f8ABBEEK

investments as FVPL NAEYEERZ £
AR E 2 ’REWA 353 45
353 46
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. 7 EBE R

For the purpose of internal reporting, the Group
only has one business segment, namely, investments
in listed and unlisted securities. Business segment
information, which is the Group’s primary basis of
segment reporting, is not required as the Group's
revenue, contribution to operating profit, assets and
liabilities are attributable to this only segment.

Geographical information

The geographical location from which the Group
derives revenue is based on the location of
the markets of the respective investments; and
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset.
However, all of the Group's revenue and non-current
assets are principally attributable to Hong Kong.
Consequently, no geographical information
represented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRBAIEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT T
This is stated after charging ~ &3#% (5t A) :
(crediting):
Finance costs Al & A
Interest on margin financing ~ FfE & F| & 170 1,477
Interest on loan payables JERT BT S - 150
Interest on bond payables JEREZT S - 516
170 2,143
Staff costs (excluding BIFAK
directors’ remuneration): (EEMSBRM) :
Employee benefits expense EERAMAX 366 416
Contributions to defined FLIE ARG B
contribution plans 36 20
Share-based payment expense A% AFE % 2
BELE 212 -
614 436
Other items H1E |
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN 2 480 450
Operating leases BB TNIKEZ
in respect of: R
office premises I NEL7IES - 129
Expenses related to short HEHREERE CRAX
term lease 143 -
Disclosures pursuant to BELETRA
Rule 21.12(1)(c) of the %21.12(1)(0) R IH T
Listing Rules
Realised loss on disposal of HELEMREZ (i)
listed investments 2 & EEE 101,631 15,402
Unrealised (gain)/loss on FHRE Z K (if)
listed investments (Wrzs) /JEFTE (74,578) 40,876
Unrealised loss on FELETERE
unlisted investments REREE 32,932 58,743
Notes: st -
(i) The amounts are calculated based on the sales () EZ%%%’ETJEF%EFFE B

proceeds less cost of those listed investments.

(ii) The amounts represented changes in fair value
of unrealised investments during the year and
cumulative change in fair value of realised
investments.
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BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

7. TAXATION 7. #g
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made HREBEEZE_ZT-AFR-_FT—-N\F
by the Group as the Group did not derive any TZA=T—BIEFEASEERILER
assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year ended BERIDERTUSEF - i A& B I &
31 December 2019 and 2018. AEBNFRAE LR
Reconciliation of tax expense HIER X YR
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-NF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Loss before tax B A AT E 1R (70,637) (123,270)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of %@ AT £16.5%
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZFE—NF:16.5%)
SAAEZHEH (11,655) (20,340)
Tax exempt revenue T IE A G W 2 (58) (40)
Non-deductible expenses AT HUR R 2 7,218 10,848
Tax loss not recognised RERBIEER 16,800 2,787
Unrecognised deductible REER A
temporary difference PRl ER (12,305) 6,745
Tax credit for the year FABIEE R - -
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LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the Group’s loss attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of HK$70,637,000 (2018:
HK$123,270,000) and the weighted average number
of 186,231,680 (2018: 186,231,680) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

On 20 February 2020, the Company completed a
share consolidation which involve the consolidation
of every ten shares of HK$0.1 into one consolidated
share of HK$1.0 each (“Consolidated Share”).

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
has been adjusted for the effect of the share
consolidation.

As exercise of share options of the Company would
result in a decrease in loss per share, diluted loss
per share is the same as basic loss per share in year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 9. EEREREBAEMS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=#M<
The aggregate amount of emoluments RNQAEE S Wk E W 2 B
received or receivable by the Company’s SHEBWOT

directors were as follows:

2019
ZE-hE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement  Share-based
Directors’  and benefits scheme payment  Discretionary
fees inkind  contributions expenses bonus Total
He BMR BAGHE URGREER
2k BEMAE #%  ZAFEX B At

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR

Executive director HiTEER

Shum Kit Lan Anita A | - 840 18 - - 858
Non-executive director FHTES

Hu Xiaoting PEe 180 - - 203 - 383

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES

directors
Chan Yik Pun R, 120 - - - - 120
Chung Fai Chun ERY 120 - - - - 120
Hung Cho Sing HEE 120 - - - - 120

540 840 18 203 - 1,601
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9.  DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 9. EBNEREEAEME (£F)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () E=EM< (&)
2018
—E-N\§
Salaries,
allowances and Retirement  Share-based
Directors' benefits scheme payment  Discretionary
fees inkind  contributions expenses bonus Total
Fe 2R RIREE HRDARE
E3He ENflE 25 A {5 BEfEa ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BB BB BB BB BB
Executive director HES
Shum Kit Lan Anita TR - 840 18 - - 858
Non-executive director FHES
Hu Xiaoting il 180 - - - - 180
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES
directors
Chan Yik Pun RZR 120 - - - - 120
Chung Fai Chun ERY 120 - - - - 120
Hung Cho Sing HIRE 120 - - - - 120
540 840 18 - - 1,398
Note: All executive directors and independent Mt KRR BRITEERE
non-executive directors of the Company are VINTEZHREEE

the key management personnel, also related
parties, of the Company. During the year, no
other transactions with related parties have
taken place (2078: Nil).

Salaries, allowance and benefit in kind
paid or payable to the executive directors
are generally emoluments paid or payable
in respect of those persons’ services in
connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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9.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

Directors’ fee paid to the non-executive and
independent non-executive directors are for
their services as directors of the Company.

There were no arrangements under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the year (2078: Nil). In
addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group or as a compensation for loss of
office for the year (2078: Nil).

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest
emoluments of the Group, four (2078: three)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 9(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other one (2078. two)
individual(s) is as follows:

9.

idated Financial Statements
IS sy 2% B 5

ESKREREEAEME (&)

(a)

(b)

E=ME (F)
Hiet: (#&)

XN TFHERATEERBY
FATEFZEFHERS
EEREARRESEM
REZ RIS AT -

FR BEFEHEREBEEM
ZHREXRBREER
e (—F—/F &)
BN FER - A B E
AERNEEXNMEER
MAREE - AR E
Bi& 2 BE L AE R BERL
B(ZF-NF: #)-

REHFHMAL
AEBERERSHFMALS
ME(ZFE-NF =ZF)R
B HFMNREMBE®RE
i fE9(a) WFTE-Hir— % (=
F-NF-ME)NTZFHM
mET

2019 2018

—E-AE —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & K H {th 37 B 260 416

Retirement scheme contributions 3R Kk 5T 2 £ 3 13 20
Share-based payment expense AR REAE 2

A 212 -

485 436

a—waERERAR 2010 #% 109
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

ESKREREEAEME (&)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments (b) EBEEHFMAL(ZE)
(Continued)
The emoluments were within the following REZFHMNFLATEE:
band:
Number of employee
EEAH
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)\F
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 BT ITEEY
1,000,0007T 1 2
() Share options granted to the directors of (0 BFERATESZERE

the Company

Under the existing share option scheme
approved by the shareholders of the Company
on 30 April 2013 (the “2013 Option
Scheme”), the Board may grant options to
those participants who, in its sole discretion,
have contributed to or will contribute to the
Group. During the year, 18,600,000 share
options were granted to a non-executive
director (2018: nil). Details of the 2013
Option Scheme are disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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10. SUBSIDIARIES 10. KELQFE
The following is a list of the details of the THAR-ZE-—NFRERZZE-N\F
subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the TZA=T—BARAREE KEER
Company at 31 December 2019 and 2018: BB ARFFE:
Principal place
of business
and place of Particulars of issued  Proportion of nominal value of issued capital held by
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital the Company Principal activities
TEEEBER TARAABERT
WEARER o 17 B 3L s B BRTREFE RAEEZ LA TEXR
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
=84 B B 5k
2019 2019 2018 2018
“B-nF ZE-AE ZEB-NE OZB-NE
Anchor Talent Limited The British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Islands each
Anchor Talent Limited RBRAEE EEREEIET 100% - 100% - REZR
Z2EBR
Excellent Top (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share with no - 100% - 100%  Dormant
par value
KE (FB)BRATF BB 1R BEE - 100% - 100% EEgx
LRk
Gufalore Investments Limited The British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Islands each
Gufalore Investments Limited EBRAEE REREEIET 100% - 100% - BAER
L ERR
Ninotre Investment Limited The British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - - 100%  Investment holding
Islands each
Ninotre Investment Limited REREES REREEIET 100% - - 100% HEER
ZERR
Pacific Kingdom International The British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands each
Pacific Kingdom International EBRUEE TREREBEIZT 100% - 100% - BEER
Limited ZERR
Whiterock Holdings Limited The British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands each
Whiterock Holdings Limited KBRS REREEIET - 100% - 100% REER

a-wEpprawras 200 4% 111
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11.

E-NFT—A=F—HIFE

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

ERE/BAAEIRZRARE

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current B
Listed equity investments BBz ETRAKRE
in Hong Kong 98,220 148,545
Non-current FERE
Unlisted equity investment BEABEINZ
outside Hong Kong FELEMRARIRE 148,319 181,251

Listed equity investments represent the Group's
investments in listed equity securities that are held
for trading, and therefore designated by the Group
as at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2019, the net fair value
gain in respect of the Group’s Hong Kong listed
investments recognised in profit or loss amounted
to approximately HK$74,578,000 (2018: loss of
HK$40,876,000), and a net loss of approximately
HK$101,631,000 (2018: HK$15,402,000) was
recognised upon disposal of the listed equity
investments for the year.
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11. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 11.
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The unlisted equity securities represent investments
in private entities which are included in the ten
largest investments of the Group as at 31 December
2019. Details are as follows:

idated Financial Statements

%gﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂ%Z&ﬁ&ﬁ
FETHRABHFBER T LF
T A=+t —HIAKRKE+KRKE
MIRMABEBZRE FHEWT:

2019 2018
—g-nE —F-NE
Effective Effective
shareholding shareholding
interest Fair value interest Fair value
ERRE AffE B E ARE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it BETR BETT
Pure Power Holdings Limited (1),(iv) 24.33% 41,326 24.33% 72,493
Pure Power Holdings Limited
Keen Champ Investments Limited (1), (iv) 16.08% 73,266 16.08% 66,001
BEREARAA
Peak Zone Group Limited (i), (iv) 29.90% 33,727 29.90% 42,757

Peak Zone Group Limited

a—pAEEBRAERAR 2010 £ 113
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11.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Movement of during the year (Continued)

Notes.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Pure Power Holdings Limited (“Pure Power"”) is
a private company and incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The principal activity of Pure Power
is investment holding and the principal activities of
its subsidiary are the exploration and exploitation of
natural resources in the United States of America.

Keen Champ Investments Limited (“Keen Champ”)
is a private company and incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The principal activity of Keen Champ
is investment holding and the principal activities
of its subsidiaries are holding of a bundle of forest
trees in the People 's Republic of China.

Peak Zone Group Limited (“Peak Zone”) is a
private company and incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The principal activity of Peak Zone is
investment holding and its subsidiaries are engaged
in the electronic commerce industry specialising in
the provision of integrated application.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
held more than 20% of the effective shareholding
interest in these companies. The investments
in these companies are not accounted for as
associates as the Group had no significant
influence over these companies. In accordance
with the relevant agreement signed between the
Group and these investee companies as well as the
other shareholders of the investee companies, the
Group does not have the right to participate in its
policy-making processes, to appoint directors nor
management and to interchange of managerial
personnel.
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Pure Power Holdings Limited ( [Pure
Power | ) A&7\ 8 iR 2 BF B a1 it
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BRRFARRARER

EEREARAR (BB AR
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IR g AR MBI Z MR o
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32 FLE A A) e Peak Zone M) E Z
EBRREEER - AN B2 A%

BFEBE EFRHESRE
=P

R ERERE  AEERZER
AR AR iB20% BFRAE - XA
SEHREARLEBEATEN
BN ZF R A ZRE W AR
BRRARRIEAEEEZEH
BRERBRARERRHEMBR
HAl 2 AREY EESEA
REBIE REEEHERENE
BERAE -



Notes to the Conso

ira B E R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-AZ+—HILFE

12.

idated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO 12. REHSE
Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule R ETRAE212E 2B E A&
21.12 of the Listing Rules, the Group discloses its BB E A+ RIRE M S B4 R
ten largest investments and all individual investments BEEBBNEEBEEES% ZFTEE
with value exceeding 5% of the Group's gross AIRE BREFRERRGMT
assets at the end of the reporting period with brief
description of the investee companies as follows:
Top ten investments TARRE
2019 —E-hF
Carrying  Accumulated Dividend
amount unrealised received/
Effective asat  holding gain receivable
Number of  shareholding 31 December (loss) arising on during Classification
Name of investee company shares held interest Acquisition cost 2019 revaluation the year of financial assets
EfRELZ
RZB-h%E EEES 3]
~ ft=A=+-H Rk EREl/ _
FRENAEH RO E ERRE KB RA ZEEE (B8) ERRE SREENR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3 BETT BETT BETR BETT
(i) Keen Champ Investments Limited 16 16.00% 128,000 73,266 (54,734) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
ERREARLA BRRRRAAENRZERBRATA
(i) Pure Power Holdings Limited 2,068 24.33% 188,000 41,326 (146,674) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
Pure Power Holdings Limited BRBERALEI R HERBRATE
(i) Peak Zone Group Limited 2,990 29.90% 90,000 33,727 (56,273) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
Peak Zone Group Limited BRRRRAAENRZERBRATA
(iv) WLS Holdings Ltd. 693,720,000 4.83% 48,513 15,262 (33,251) - Current equity instruments FVPL
ERERERAF BRERRAAENRZRBRATE
) Asia Grocery Distribution Limited 25,430,000 2.19% 4,562 13,987 9,425 - Current equity instruments FVPL
THEERRAR BRERRAAENRZRBRATE
() China e-Wallet Payment 101,930,371 3.72% 39,874 11,523 (28,351) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Group Limited
FEREBXNREERAE BRBERANBIEZRBRATIA
(vii) China National Culture 485,000,000 4.94% 48,500 6,790 (41,710) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Group Limited
FEER U EXEEERAR BRBRERAABIEZRBRALE
(vify) SEEC Media Group Limited 301,340,000 4.73% 66,422 5,424 (60,998) - Current equity instruments FVPL
HEEERERAR BRBRRAABIEZRBRALE
(ix) China Properties Investment 234,990,000 4.40% 71,671 5,170 (66,501) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Holdings Limited
FHEEREZRERAA BRERRAAENRZRBRATE
x) KPM Holding Limited 158,780,000 4.96% 52,413 5,081 (47,332) - Current equity instruments FVPL
ERERERAF BRERRAAENRZRBRATE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s top ten
investments have been listed above.

R-ZT—hE+—A=+—8 &=
BEEZ TAKRETIER EXHIE -
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12. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued) 12. REMLE (&)
Top ten investments (Continued) TREBRE (&
2018 —T-N\F
Carrying Accumulated
amount unrealised Dividend
Effective as at holding gain received/
Number of shares shareholding 31 December  (loss) arising on  receivable during Classification
Name of investee company held interest  Acquisition cost 2018 revaluation the year of financial assets
BRBELL

RZE-\F ZHAER
+:H + A R ERBY/
FEENRAE RO BB E L€ ZRERE (B8) RS tREENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BB BETIL

Pure Power Holdings Limited 2,068 24.33% 188,000 72,493 (115,507) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
Pure Power Holdings Limited BRBRRAABIEZERBRATA
Keen Champ Investments Limited 16 16.00% 128,000 66,001 (61,999) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
BOREERAH BRBERAABIRZERIRATE
Peak Zone Group Limited 2,990 29.90% 90,000 42,757 (47,243) - Non current equity instruments FVPL
Peak Zone Group Limited BRBRRAABIEZERBRATIA
WLS Holdings Ltd. 693,720,000 4.83% 48,513 33,299 (15,214) - Currem equity instruments FVPL
EEEREBAR BRRRRAABIEZRBRALA
China Kingstone Mining 304,966,082 10.77% 88,814 32,631 (56,183) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Holdings Limited
TEEABRFARERAR BRRRRAABIEZRBRALA
China e-Wallet Payment 101,970,371 3.72% 39,874 19,680 (20,194) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Group Limited
PHEAYNEEERAA BRBRRALEIIRIRBHRALE
China National Culture 485,000,000 4.94% 48,500 7,760 (40,740) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Group Limited
PEAXXCEXEEERAT BRERRAABIEZRBRALA
KPM Holding Limited 158,780,000 4.96% 52,413 7,145 (45,268) - Current equity instruments FVPL
ERERER AR BRERRAABIEZRBRALA
China Properties Investment 234,990,000 4.84% 71,671 5,875 (65,796) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Holdings Limited
TEHEXREARERAR BRRRRAABIEZRBRALA
SEEC Media Group L\mlted 291,460,000 4.57% 66,234 5,538 (60,696) - Current equity instruments FVPL
HABEEEERA BRRRRAABIEZRBRALA
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12.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Top ten investments (Continued)

Notes.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The place of incorporation and the principal
activities of Keen Champ are detailed in note 11(ii)
of these financial statements. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2019, the unaudited
consolidated net loss attributable to equity holders
of Keen Champ was HK$1,284,000 As at 31
December, 2019, its unaudited consolidated net
liabilities attributable to the equity holders was
HK$13,090,000. The fair value was arrived by the
Directors with reference to the valuation conducted
by an independent professional valuer.

The place of incorporation and the principal
activities of Pure Power are detailed in note 11(i)
of these financial statements. For the financial
year ended 31 December, 2019, the unaudited
consolidated net loss attributable to equity
holders of Pure Power was US$493,000. As at
31 December, 2019, its unaudited consolidated
net asset attributable to the equity holders
was US$46,342,000. As at 31 December 2019,
the recoverable amount of Pure Power has
been assessed by the Directors by reference to
transactions after the end of the reporting period.

The place of incorporation and the principal
activities of Peak Zone are detailed in note 11(iii)
of these financial statements. For the financial
year ended 31 December, 2019, the unaudited
consolidated net profit attributable to equity
holders of Peak Zone was HK$4,967,000. As at
31 December 2019, its unaudited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$15,069,000. The fair value was arrived by the
Directors with reference to the valuation conducted
by an independent professional valuer.
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12. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued) REMBE (&)
Top ten investments (Continued) TARRE (&)
Notes: (Continued) Biaz: (&)

(iv)

WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS") is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability and
its shares are listed on Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock code: 8021). WLS is principally
engaged in the scaffolding and fitting out services,
management contracting services and other services
for construction and buildings work, money lending
business, securities brokerage and margin financing
and securities investment business. For the year
ended 30 April 2019, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of WLS was HK$51,898,000
with basic and diluted loss per share of HKO0.361
cents. As at 30 April 2019, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the owners was
HK$646,039,000.

Asia Grocery Distribution Limited (“Asia Grocery”)
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 8413). It is
principally engaged in trading and distribution
of food and beverage grocery products in Hong
Kong. For the financial year ended 31 March 2019,
the audited consolidated income attributable to
equity holders of Asia Grocery was HK$3,909,000
with basis and diluted earnings per share both of
HK0.34 cents. As at 31 March 2019, its audited
consolidated net assets attributable to the equity
holder was HK$106,324,000.
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(iv)
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12. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited (“China
e-Wallet”) (formerly known as “RCG Holdings
Limited”) was incorporated in Bermuda and the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 802). China e-Wallet
is principally engaged in the provision of biometric
and RFID products and solution services. For the
financial year ended 31 December 2018, the
audited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of China e-Wallet was HK$46,754,000 with basic
and diluted loss per share of HK1.7 cents. As
at 31 December 2018, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the owners was
HK$512,809,000.

China National Culture Group Limited (“CNC")
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 745). CNC is
principally engaged in the properties investment,
money lending and financial services provision
of the advertising media services, e-commence
film production and distribution business. For
the year ended 31 March 2019, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of CNC
was HK$65,904,000 with basic and diluted loss per
share of HKO0.67 cents. As at 31 March 2019, its
audited consolidated net assets attributable to the
owners was HK$218,436,000.

idated Financial Statements
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12.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes. (Continued)

(viii)

(ix)

SEEC Media Group Limited (“SEEC MEDIA")
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued
in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (Stock code: 205). It is principally engaged
in the provision of advertising agency services and
distribution of books and magazines in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") and securities broking
business, money lending business and provision
of e-commerce platform services and sales of
related goods in Hong Kong. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2018, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of SEEC MEDIA was HK$125,077,000 with basis
and diluted loss per share both of HK1.96 cents.
As at 31 December 2018, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holder was
HK$499,584,000.

China Properties Investment Holdings Limited
("CHINA PPT INV") incorporated and domiciled
in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (Stock code: 736). It is principally engaged
in properties investment, the provision of financial
services and money lending. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2019, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to equity holders of CHINA PPT INV
was HK$62,354,000 with basis and diluted loss per
share both of HK1.28 cents. As at 31 March 2019,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to
the equity holder was HK$697,038,000.

KPM Holdings Limited (“KPM HLDS") incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock code: 8027). It is principally
engaged in the design, fabrication, installation and
maintenance of signage and related products. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
audited consolidated loss attributable to equity
holders of KPM HLDS was Singapore dollar (“S$")
1,586,829 with basis and diluted loss per share
both of S$0.050 cents (Year ended 31 December
2018: earnings per share of $$0.028). As at 31
December 2019, its audited consolidated net assets
attributable to the equity holder was S$13,119,552.
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13.

14.

DUE FROM SECURITIES BROKERS 13. REURRERFL&4
Amounts due from securities brokers represent eI 7B %Z“‘iﬂ J% Fiqe b
deposits placed with securities brokers for the KREBB e WEKREREER
trading of listed investments which are repayable on
demand and interest-free.
OTHER RECEIVABLE 14. HtEWRIE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Other receivable H & W kI8 18,250 23,250
Loss allowance iR (2,856) (396)
15,394 22,854

The movements in the loss allowance for ECL of

Hip e I8 2 HEEEBE 2 B A

other receivables are as follows: BEHIT -
2019 2018
—®-nE  -T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At the beginning of the year NG 396 -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RNEBBEWEE - 591

Aok v o &

At the beginning of the year (restate) RE¥] (L&) 396 591
Impairment losses, net VERIENSEi=bE R0 2,460 (195)
At the end of the year REF R 2,856 396
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14. OTHER RECEIVABLE (Continued) 14.

At the end of the reporting period, the gross
receivable of approximately HK$18,250,000
(2018: HK$23,250,000) represent the remaining
consideration regarding the disposal of an unlisted
equity investment in prior years.

15. DUE TO SECURITIES BROKERS 15.

Amounts due to securities brokers represent margin
loans arising from the trading of listed investments
which are repayable on demand. No ageing analysis
is disclosed in respect of due to securities brokers.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the Group's business nature.

HihEWRE (&)

RmERR BRERKKEBELHBE
18,250,000t (=T — N\ F : B ¥
23,250,0007C) iEEEBEFE L E
ELETIRAIRE 2 R E -

BREBHFRLE2RE

RBRBARLZFEBESE LHIRE
BAEENRESER GHEENT)
REREE - BRIFELZFALZ
BREC D T RIMBER UL - ARBES
R RARBEEBEEME  KRiKk
DAL EEEIME(E -

16. LOAN PAYABLES 16. ERER
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T PR T
At beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥} %5 88 %] - 10,175
Repayment B - (10,000)
Interest expense MERX - 150
Interest paid EATFE - (325)
At end of the reporting period P B A R B - -
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17.

18.

BOND PAYABLES 17. BNES
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥ & Hi %] 10,000 10,684
Interest expense FER - 516
Interest paid =ENEES) - (1,200)
Repayment B K (10,000) -
At end of the reporting period PR 5 HR 4 SR - 10,000
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the HE-T— /_\i‘f’_ﬂz‘f’*aﬂzi
Company issued bonds to an independent third N $ AR —BBIE=FETAR
party with an aggregate principal amount of Az@%ﬁﬁ%%mooooooﬁ FEE
HK$10,000,000 at 6% coupon rate per annum with KE6% AN —_E—N\F+—A+—
a maturity date on 11 November 2018, the second A(#1TESE BEFmMES)E
anniversary of the date of issue of the bonds. &5 - HARENNEINE ERE
Related interest payables were also included with NEFFAGETBRRK -ETE
the bonds payable in the consolidated statement HZERBRARASEE 2 REKE
of financial position. The proceeds from issuance —REBEES -
of bonds are used for investment opportunity and
general working capital of the Group.
SHARE CAPITAL 18. RB=X
2019 2018
—g-n% -2 )\%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Authorised: EE
20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 20,000,000,000/% & R EI{E
HK$0.1 each BT EBR 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
1,862,316,806 ordinary shares of 1,862,316,806/% & X E &
HK$0.1 each B0 BRR 186,232 186,232

A—RAEBRAERAR 2010 £ 123
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19.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme of the Company
was approved and adopted by shareholders’
resolution at the annual general meeting held
on 30 April 2013 (the “"Option Scheme"”),
unless otherwise cancelled or amended subject
to resolution passed at general meeting of the
Company the Option Scheme will remain in
force for ten years from 30 April 2013. As at
31 December 2019, the remaining life of the Option
Scheme was approximately 3 years and 4 months.

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to reward the
participants who have contributed or will contribute
to the Group and to encourage the participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Under the Option Scheme,
the Board of the Company may grant options to
those participants who, in its sole discretion, have
contributed to or will contribute to the Group.

Eligible participants (the “Participants”) of
the Option Scheme include any directors of
the Company (including executive directors,
independent
non-executive directors of the Company) and
employees of the Group, any directors or employees
of a company or entity in which the Group has
invested in and any advisors (professional or
otherwise), consultants, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint
venture business partners, promoters, any directors

non-executive directors and

or employees of any service providers of any
members of the Group.
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19.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval of the option
limit; and (ii) the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each Participant under the Option
Scheme (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not (when
aggregated with any shares of the Company subject
to options granted during such period under any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company)
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief
executive or substantive shareholders (as such terms
as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or
any of their respective associates under the Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject
to the prior approval of the independent non-
executive directors or shareholders of the Company
as the case may be. Without prior separate approval
from the Company’s shareholders, the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant
shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue on the date of such grant; and (ii)
have an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million.

19.
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19.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Under the Option Scheme, the options granted
may be accepted by the participants concerned
for a period of twenty-eight days from the date of
such offer. An option shall be regarded as having
been accepted when the Company receives from
the Participant the duplicate of the offer letter duly
signed by the Participant together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1 as consideration
for the grant of option. Options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme at
any time not exceeding a period of ten years from
the date on which the share option is granted. The
subscription price for the shares on the exercise
of an option under the Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but in any event shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the Company's share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be
a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company'’s share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’'s
share.
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19. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 19. BRESTE (&)
Details of share options granted REBREFS
Vesting Exercise Exercisable
Date of grant Number of share options date price period
RiHBH BREHE BEAH TEE TEHA
2019 2018
“Z-hE ZE-N\F

Options granted to MAREES* - 16,000,000 2 June 2017 HK$0.1 2 years
an employee of BB AR ZEER 0T M
the Company*: AZR

On 2 June 2017 RZZE—tF
(after trading hours) ~NAZH

(R5EE&RE)

Options granted to AR 7R - 42,000,000 2 June 2017 HK$0.1 2 years
consultants of the BB AR ZEEER BT M
Company: AZR

On 2 June 2017 RZZE—tF
(after trading hours) ~NAZH

(R5HEE&RE)

On 8 May 2018 RZZ-N\E 154,600,000 154,600,000 8 May 2018 HK$0.1 2 years

(after trading hours) RANE —E-N\F B0 M F
(5K E&R) TANA

Option granted to RZT—N% 18,600,000 - 9 May 2019 HK$0.1 2 years
an employee of the AANA —T-NE BT I
Company on 9 May 2019 (RSB &%) TANE
(after trading hours) RANFIEES

K BRE

Option granted to RZE-NE&E 18,600,000 - 9 May 2019 HK$0.1 2 years
a Director of the AANA —T-NE BT M
Company on 9 May 2019 (RSB &%) TANE
(after trading hours) AARNAES

Rt BRE
Total share options R @Rz 191,800,000 212,600,000

granted

The closing price of the Company’s shares on 9 May
2019, 8 May 2018 and 2 June 2017 were HK$0.046,
HK$0.054 and HK$0.095 per share, respectively.

* The grantee is Ms. HU Xiaoting, who was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 7 June 2017.

KRR —_E—NAFERALB

—E-N\FRANBEZE—tFR

AZBzZWMED R ASRE0.046

T~ /B #0.0547T & B #0.0957T ©

* EFRANBIEEL T FEZTA
RARIFEMITESE AT —tF
NALBRER-.
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19. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 19.

The movement of share options granted and
weighted average exercise prices of share options

idated Financial Statements

BRERE (E)
BB RE = ) MBI g 91T
(-2

Number of options

BREHE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F

Outstanding at the beginning of FHYRITE
the year 212,600,000 58,000,000
Granted during the year FRE M 37,200,000 154,600,000
Lapsed during the year FAKRK (58,000,000) -~
Outstanding at the end of the year ~FRKITfE 191,800,000 212,600,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FARAITE 191,800,000 212,600,000

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2019 have exercise prices of HK$0.1 per option
(2018: HK$0.1) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.55 years (2018: 1.34 years).

For share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2019 and 2018, the share options
were measured at fair value at grant date with
reference to a valuation report prepared by
International Valuation Limited, calculated using

RZE—-NF+_A=+—BKTE
BIENITEE AT MO B0
TT(ZZE—)\F:B¥0.17T)  IEF
BRSBEHFEAROSF (ZE—N
41345 ) o

EEBE-T-NAFR_B—N\F
T A=+ BIEFERLMER
i EIRES EERHE AR A AR
WEFHE RSN R AR AR EE
& R TIE BBRRA AR

Binomial Option Pricing model with the following

key assumptions:

e ERE

Share price (B 2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

Exercise price T2 E HK$0.1 HK$0.1

BT 01T

Expected volatility (Note below) TEER M (DA T M EE) 85% 76%

Expected option life TR AT B R F 1 2 years M F 2 years M 4F

Expected dividends EER R - -

Risk-free interest rate (per annum) 2 7 b F FI| & 1.699% 1.809%
Fair value of a share option s gun=R: il g HK$0.0109-
at grant date ARE HK$0.0114

B ¥0.0109TE HK$0.002528

B#0.0114T  /810.0025287C
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19.

20.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information.

The Group recognised a total expense of
approximately HK$415,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: HK$391,000) in relation
to share options granted by the Company.

There were 18,623,168 (2018: 186,231,680) shares,
representing approximately 10.00% (2018: 10.00%)
of total issued share capital of the Company,
available for issue under the Option Scheme as at
the date of this Annual Report.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Net asset value per share is calculated by dividing the
net assets included in the consolidated statement of
financial position of approximately HK$265,069,000
(2018: HK$335,291,000) by the number of shares
in issue at 31 December 2019, being 1,862,316,806
(2018: 1,862,316,806).

In the course of preparation of this annual report,
the value of the Group’'s unlisted investments
decreased by net amount of approximately
HK$32,932,000, which was made with reference to
independent valuation reports principally. As these
valuation reports were obtained by the Company
after 15 January 2020, the date of the Company's
announcement titled “Net Asset Value” (the "NAV
Announcement”), the net asset value per share of
the Company as at 31 December 2019 decreased
from approximately HK$0.16 as stated in the NAV
Announcement to approximately HK$0.14 as stated
in this annual report.

19.

20.

idated Financial Statements

R 8 ()
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ETOH TR E)HE AR
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G AEBBLADRER 2 B S
SRR #0785 %415,0007T (—F—/1
1F B #391,0000T) °

RAFHR A $£518,623,168/% (=
F— )14 : 186,231,6804% ) BcAn » {h X
NEIEETIRANBEEL10.00% (= F
— /U4 :10.00% ) - 7] 1R 5 B8 AR 4 &1
2| FLABE T

BREEFRE

BB EFENGE P BN RS
K& B R E 478 #265,069,0007T (—
T — )\ 4 : B ¥335,291,0007T ) Bk A
RZZE-—NAF+_A=+—HHE
BT BUE1,862,316,806/% (==
— J\4F : 1,862,316,806/% ) sTE 15t ©

REEAFROBIEFT T ELRE
B HERS AEBIELTEREZ
BER  F 5845 ¥32,932,0007T °
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21. CHARGE OF ASSETS AND MARGIN FACILITIES 21.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, margin facilities
from several regulated securities brokers were
granted to the Group which were secured by the
Group's listed equity investment at FVPL. As at
31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had not
utilised against these facilities.

22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

EEEARREESEE
RZE-NERZZE-N\F+A
=T —H ZRXAETRHFLLERARN
SERERBESEE MZEEE
UGB B RBERZEANEIRZ
FARAEEEER - RZTE—NF
KZZE-—NFTZA=T—0 &
I ESAEA{EERE.

I FIE B 1R
BT &AM EL 2 RERIELH T
BE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T
Deductible temporary differences BRBREAAE
from changes in fair value of I BR 2 M B AR AR
current equity investments at fair RERNAREZH

value through profit or loss 2 A 2 F] A0 B B B

=8 89,761 94,591

Tax losses % E 1R 97,699 72,785

At 31 December R+=HA=+—8H 187,460 167,376

Neither the tax losses nor the deductible temporary
differences expire under current tax legislation.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Recognised deferred tax liabilities and unrecognised
deferred tax assets are not offset as there is no
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities.

130 ANNUAL REPORT 2019  Unity Investments Holdings Limited

RIBIRITIRIS R B - 75 B8 S AT 40
5 e P52 230 R J o © B P 2R 2R A
AN A TR B SRR AR IR A
o

I PR B & 0K AT R BT THE A AT AR
BHAEERRDHRARBEYH &
I G B W RRIR AR TR B B BELURFERR
EIETRIA B ELTH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_F-NFFt_H="1—HItFE

23. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 23. EEFARS
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT
Loss before tax BrEAIEE (70,637) (123,270)
Changes in fair value of listed BRBREAAEIERZ
equity investments at FVPL ETBRAKREZ
AR S (74,578) 40,876
Change in fair value of unlisted FERBHEEALEYEZ
equity investment at FVPL ELEHRBRAREY
DhEE 32,932 58,743
Impairment of financial assets RS NI BE 2
at amortised cost, net CRMEEYRESSE 2,460 (195)
Interest income FEHA - (1
Interest expenses FERX 170 2,143
Dividend income BB A (353) (45)
Share-based payment expenses R AEREZ NHRAX 415 391
Change in working capital: LEEGE
Financial assets at fair value FRBRRALENERZ
through profit or loss TREE 124,903 (11,022)
Deposits and prepayments, other B REMK
receivable and due from securities Hh fE R IE R
brokers JEN 7 B (e BOE 11,917 43,300
Other payables and accruals and Hi s ket E R
due to securities broker AR EEREBEHFLL 2
HIA (17,571) 1,197
Cash generated from operations EERSRE 9,658 12,117
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24.

25.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following
transaction with China Everbright Securities (HK)
Limited, the investment manager of the Company,
which provides investment management service
to the Group. Investment manager is considered
a connected person under Rule 14A.08 of Listing
Rules.

24.

idated Financial Statements

BB ARS

BRI SR A ISR A H M EENFT
WEZRS/ERIN REAFEE K
SEEFPRALREFSF(BB)BRA
A (ARRIZRELE MAEER
HIEEEERRB)BUATRS RiE
FHRBIFE14A.0815  WE KB R
B—RAEEALT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 Bt 75 BB & REMHE BT BT
Investment manager of Investment management 600 600

the Company service fee

KRB ZREKIE

REEERGE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
bank balances and cash, equity investments,
deposits, loan payables, bond payables, due from/to
securities broker and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies applied by the Group to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.
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25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors
Price risk

As set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements, certain of the Group’s equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss listed
in the stock market are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the
Group’s investments in equity securities are exposed
to equity price risk. The management manages
exposure to the risk centrally by monitoring the
change of market prices of the equity from time to
time, and by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different profiles in Hong Kong. The sensitivity
analysis has been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk. At the reporting date, if the
fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss had been 5% higher/lower while all
other variables were held constant, the Group's
net loss would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$4,911,000 (2018: HK$7,427,000).

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk for all financial
assets that a counterparty in a transaction may
default on settlement, including bank balances,
other receivables and due from securities brokers.
The maximum exposure equals to the carrying
amount of these financial assets. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.
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25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s bank balances are placed with
credit-worthy banks in Hong Kong. The securities
brokers are leading and reputable and are assessed
as having low credit risk. Majority of the bank
balances and cash are deposited in reputable
large commercial banks with credit rating of Baal
issued by Moody’s. The Group has not suffered any
significant losses arising from the non-performance
by these brokers in the past and the management
does not expect this position to change in the
future.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has
concentration credit risk of 78% (2018: 67%) of the
total receivables was due from the Group’s largest
debtor. However, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis, the Directors review the
recoverable amount of each individual loan debt and
loan regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31

December 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2019. The amounts

presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

25,

cREREEEEREE (&)

TREARREER (&)

=EmLE (&)
R-F—NFFZA=1—HA8R5
g R F R IE B
TRETREAKBEEERRNER
BExkesaFERR (HZEREH
TEMER (FRIFEHEMENATER
BERAKBENNAER)ETE) R
R-F-NF+ZA=1T—HBHHNFX
FEEDE-FTZ2I B REREEN
AREAAME -

assets.
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A A
FEER 2HRAEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
R M B E3IRE R b7 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BT BETT
Deposits and prepayments e REMR 221 - - - 221
Due from securities brokers ~ JEULE % &8 42 08 3,909 - - - 3,909
Other receivable Hit YRR 15,394 - - - 15,394
Bank balances and cash BOEFRRS
- Not yet past due - R 297 - - - 297
19,821 - - - 19,821
* For other receivable to which the Group applies * AEBERBE-MAEANHM

general approach for impairment, and is disclosed
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEWR IR - IR B M ISR AR M EE14
M= -
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25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2019 (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales and loans are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is limited because the
counterparty is a well-established securities broker
firm in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of loans, bonds and utilisation of
margin facilities of securities brokers. The Group
will keep reviewing its financial needs from time to
time to determine the timing of obtaining various
borrowings or carrying out fund raising activities.

As at 31 December 2019, the remaining
undiscounted contractual maturity profile of the
Group's non-derivative financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the earliest date
on which the Group is required to settle at the end
of the reporting period, based on the remaining
contractual maturities, are with one year or on
demand (2018: within one year or on demand).

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to provide returns for shareholders.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments, including payment of dividend to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.
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25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 25.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

Pursuant to the provision of articles of association
of the Company, the Company may exercise its
borrowing power to borrow up to an aggregate

principal amount for the time being remaining
discharged of all money borrowed by the Group not
exceeding 50% of the net asset value. The Group
monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted
capital. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the
end of the financial period were as follows:

idated Financial Statements

cREREEEEREE (&)

SBAREE (&)
EREE ()

BB A B B R A 2 3 A
AFATELERES  EAKSE
58 (BD A 5 % B 5 ok (2 1 20)
5% T BBE R FET0% AL
RS S R A A R (AR
SR LS T RS AR BB AR o OB
BT R SR A A L R
AR

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BT T

Bond payables JE &% - 10,000
Due to securities broker HERBHERL 2T - 18,311
Less: Due from securities brokers W U B S 4 A0 FRIE (3,909) (10,466)
Less: Bank balances and cash B TEFERRES (297) (456)
Net (receivable) debts (W) B F58 (4,206) 17,389
Total equity R 265,069 335,291
Net of unrealised reserves RERHEE TR - -
Adjusted capital KRR E R 265,069 335,291
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BERHCHABRERL R N/ATERA 5.19%
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 26. AREFE

The following presents the Group's financial TX 2 ARG HERFEBIEES

instruments measured at fair value at the end of the WM EERE13RN: AR BEFER

reporting period across the three levels of the fair EZ=BArERRNE D AR ER
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value EZAEESMIA M8

Measurement, with the fair value measurement BNEE2REHEEIEBEE &

categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level BERWARZ B -WAREZERR

input that is significant to the entire measurement. ET:

The levels of inputs are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices . F—EB(ZaE) ~NEERF
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical EHHENES ZHEREESK
assets or liabilities that the Group can access BERERMSZ CWE (CREK
at the measurement date; AR

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices . FE_E-EEXBEIVEESN
included within Level 1 that are observable FEHEEER B AR (T8
for the asset or liability, either directly or RE—EBAZHRE)
indirectly;

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for . FoE(HREE) -BEEXAE
the asset or liability. Z A B RB AR X

(a) Assets measured at fair value (@) LUUAAEBEFHEZEE
2019 —E-hEF

The Group
Py
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-FE 2-FE £ &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BET T BETRT
Equity investment at fair ERERBEDAAEIEZ
value through profit or loss ~ RARE
Listed equity investments TR ARE 98,220 - - 98,220
Unlisted equity investments FEMRAERE - - 148,319 148,319
98,220 - 148,319 246,539
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 26. AREFTE(E)
(@) Assets measured at fair value (Continued) (@) LUURAREBEHEZEE(£E)
2018 —E-N\F
The Group
A&HE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE E-E F=E ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Equity investment at fair ERARBERAAEIRZ
value through profit or loss ~RA&EE

Listed equity investments Ik ARE 148,545 - - 148,545
Unlisted equity investments FETRARE - - 181,251 181,251
148,545 - 181,251 329,796

During the years ended 31 December 2019

B E-NFR=ZZE—)N\F
and 2018, there were no other transfers + =

F—

A

N

A=+—HLFE #&
BREZEBARBEIFEZ
MEMER KEE=|E
REFEZEBAREL -

ES
between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements, and no transfers into and out
of Level 3 fair value measurements.
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 26. AREFE(E)

(a) Assets measured at fair value (Continued) (@) UAAREEZEE(Z)
Movement in Level 3 fair value EEEARETEZEE
measurements
Fair value measurement at the end of the RERERE 2 AR BENE:

reporting period:

2019
—E-hEF
Equity
investments
at fair value
through
profit or loss
NREIIRZ
RERE
HK$°000
BET T
At beginning of the reporting R & B )
period 181,251
Change in fair value NI I=E= (32,932)
At end of the reporting period RERE SR 148,319
Change in unrealised gains or HERERERE
losses for the year included in EEGTTAEBER
profit or loss for assets held at ZEFERRBR WS
the end of the reporting REEEE
period (32,932)
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 26. AREFTE(E)
(@) Assets measured at fair value (Continued) (@) LUURAREBEHEZEE(£E)
Movement in Level 3 fair value EZERAAEFNECEE (Z)

measurements (Continued)

2018
—ZE-N\F
Equity
investments
at fair value
through
profit or loss
FiRBmIE
ARESRZ
RAKE
HK$'000
R
At beginning of the reporting 7 ¥R & B 1)
period 239,994
Change in fair value NREE S (58,743)
At end of the reporting period R E B &R 181,251
Change in unrealised gains or HERAERER T
losses for the year included in EETTAEBER
profit or loss for assets held at ZFEARSHR W=
the end of the reporting REGEEEH
period (58,743)
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a) Assets measured at fair value (Continued)
Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of
valuation technique used in Level 3 fair
value measurement
The quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of
valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair value
measurement, including the description of the
sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs
for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements,
are as follows:

idated Financial Statements

26.
(a)

DMREFE(E)

UAREFEZEE (&)
EATTBRYABEZEE
ERERRE=ELLEEA
H2Z 1 EF M %

ERTABEGARBZTEE
EERRE=ZEBRAAEFEM
Rz BERMHA (BHEREH
KREME=ZELrrEAEZT

ATERREARBE D 2 QUBE
faat) g

Relationship of

31 December 31 December  Valuation Significant unobservable unobservable inputs
Financial assets 2019 2018 technique(s) input(s) Range to fair value
ZB-RE —2-0\5
tZh +ZR EXTURE TIBRRBABER
EREE =t+-H =t-B {AERE BAgE il MEZBE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Unlisted equity 106,993 181,251 Discounted cash flow Expected future cash N/A The higher the future cash
securities with future cash flows flows flow, the higher the fair
that are estimated value
based on expected
recoverable amounts,
discounted at rates Discount rates that 12%-13% The lower the discount rate,
that reflect correspond to the (2018: 15%-16%) the higher the fair value
management's expected risk level
best estimation of
the expected risk level
FEMBRAES 106,993 181,251 KRREREZ BHARRER TR AREEREHR
RERURBRE NAERE
BHTRE B LT
BRREEE HaRBERKTZ 12%13% (Z2-\F:  BREEE ALEAS
HERERATZ EEE 15%-16% )
BABMGOFERR
Unlisted equity 41,326 - Sales consideration N/A N/A N/A
securities stated in agreement
FLmREAES 41,326 - RBBETIBEHBERE  TEA TER TER
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26.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Assets measured at fair value (Continued)
Valuation processes of the Group

The management of the Group reviews
the estimation of fair value of the unlisted
equity securities that are not traded in stock
markets which are categorised into level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair values of
these unlisted securities are determined with
reference to the valuation reports prepared by
independent professional qualified valuers on
an annual basis. Discussion of the valuation
process and results with the Directors and
Audit Committee is held twice a year, for the
Group's interim and annual reporting.

26.
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 27. BMBERRE
2019 2018
—F-hEF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI 262,561 345,306
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments e REMNK 213 325
Bank balances and cash WITHEEFENMRS 156 211
369 536
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to subsidiaries NN NGRS @ - 3,442
Other payables and accruals — H b Eff 5k M BT B 1,291 531
Bond payables JE 1~ & 5 - 10,000
1,291 13,973
Net current liabilities REBBEEFEE (922) (13,437)
Total assets less current EEHAERARDER
liabilities 261,639 331,869
NET ASSETS EEFEE 261,639 331,869
Capital and reserves RAR R E
Share capital N 186,232 186,232
Reserves i Note
i 75,407 145,637
TOTAL EQUITY BMER 261,639 331,869

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 27 March 2020.

ERBEEERN _ZE_TF=A
T BRI TR

SHUM Kit Lan Anita HU Xiaoting
LER IS
Director Director
EFE EFE
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HE—_F—NF1+-_H=1+—HIFFE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued) 27. H#BRRE(£E)
Note: Hat -

MOVEMENT OF RESERVE REEE

Share Share option Accumulated

Premium reserve losses Total
BAEE BRERE 2 ER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETR BETT BETT

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—F—H 1,051,569 501 (906,433) 145,637
Grant of share options R R - 415 - 415
Lapsed of share options EIREL - (110) 110 -
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZAEERER

loss for the year - - (70,645) (70,645)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZ-NF

+=ZA=t+-H 1,051,569 806 (976,968) 75,407

At 1 January 2018 R-B-N\F—F—F 1,051,569 110 (782,595) 269,084
Grant of share options RlERE - 391 - 391
Loss and total comprehensive FANEBEREZABBAE

loss for the year - - (123,838) (123,838)
At 31 December 2018 R-EB-NF

+=-A=+-H 1,051,569 501 (906,433) 145,637
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, RIBEFSEEANE ERMAENBE
the share premium, subject to a solvency test and the TR AN A B AR 4 E 72 K4 S AR Al
Company's memorandum and article of association, BRET RO REAIHIIKTRE
is distributable to the shareholders. The Company RARIRZZE—NF+A=1+—H
had a distributable reserve of HK$110,806,000 as at 2 Al #5718 A8 110,806,000
31 December 2019 (2018: HK$145,637,000). TL(ZF—/VF B # 145,637,000
JT) e
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28. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Capital Reorganisation

Reference is made to the circular of the Company
dated 21 October 2019 (the “Circular”) and the
announcement of the Company dated 20 February
2020 relating to the Capital Reorganisation. Unless
the context otherwise requires, terms used in this
note shall have the same meanings as those defined

in the Circular.

Subsequent to the year end date of 31 December
2019, the Capital Reorganisation became effective
on 20 February, 2020 (Hong Kong time) which
involves, among others, (a) the reduction of the
par value of each issued share from HK$0.10 to
HK$0.0001; (b) the sub-division of each authorised
but unissued share into 1,000 new shares of
HK$0.0001 each (each a “New Share”);
the consolidation of the New Shares on the basis
that every 10 issued and unissued New Shares of
HK$0.0001 each consolidated into one share of

HK$0.001 each.

As a result of the Capital Reorganisation, the
number of shares in issue has been updated from
1,862,316,806 then issued shares of HK$0.10 each

to 186,231,680 shares of HK$0.001 each.

For further details, please refer to the Circular.
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28.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

Impact of Novel Coronavirus Outbreak to the
Group

Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel
Coronavirus (“COVID-19") has impact on the global
business environment. Pending on the development
and spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the date of
these financial results, further changes in economic
conditions for the Group arising thereof may have
impact on the financial results of the Group, the
extent of which could not be estimated as at the
date of these financial results. The Group will
keep continuous attention on the situation of the
COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.
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Financial Summary

YAZ HAL &R
L E
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-NE —F-)N\F ZT—+F ZT-RF _T—1F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT AT BAETT EETr BT
Results %E
(Loss) gain from the sale of HEBBERRK
listed investments at fair N ENERZ
value through profit or loss rHEEZ
(E518) k= (101,631)  (15,402) (169,837) 30,466 (12,975)
(Loss) profit before tax Br#iAT (E518)EF  (70,637) (123,270) (613,334) (401,883) 145,733
Income tax Fii5®t - - - 33,047 (33,047)
(Loss) profit attributable to RARERRE A
equity holders of the Company {5 (E518)&%  (70,637) (123,270) (613,334) (368,836) 112,686
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets EERE 266,360 364,153 497,285 1,208,660 1,077,441
Total liabilities BEEE (1,291)  (28,862)  (38,524)  (97,468)  (34,010)
Total equity BIREZE 265,069 335,291 458,761 1,111,192 1,043,431
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